KABAT -

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

AGENDA

Regular Meeting of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority Board of Directors
Virtual Meeting via Zoom
ID: 939 9552 0274 Passcode: 113219
June 15, 2021
2:00 PM

1. Call to Order
2. Approval of the Agenda

3. Consent Agenda

Approval of Minutes from the May 18, 2021 Board Meeting
Receipt of Bank Reconciliation Report — May 2021

Receipt of Financial Reports — May 2021

Receipt of Building Report — May 2021

Receipt of Permit Lists — May 2021

Poo0 o

4. Citizen Comments on Agenda and Non-Agenda Items
a. Policy: A citizen shall state his/her name and address and may speak only one time, for no more
than three (3) minutes. This time may not be given to another citizen to extend their time. During
this time, you will be making statements, without discussion from the Board, but you are welcome
to make an appointment with the Building Official or Board Chair to discuss your comments further.
(Approved by KABA Board on November 9, 2017)

5. Presentation — Jordan Smith, CPA with Maner Costerisan

6. Business
a. Construction Board of Appeals Policy

7. Board Member Comments
8. Staff Member Comments

9. Adjournment



Consent Agenda

Meeting Minutes from May 18, 2021




MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING OF THE
KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY
KALAMAZOO, M1
May 18, 2021

Secretary, Lysanne Harma called the Virtual Regular Meeting of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority
(KABA) Board to order at approximately 2:00 P.M., Virtual Meeting Via Zoom.

Present: Terry Mclver, Alternate Chairperson / Representative from Comstock Township
Steve Leuty, Treasurer / Representative from Kalamazoo Township

Don Smith / Representative from Pine Grove Township
Lysanne Harma, Secretary / Representative from Richland Township

Kim Lewis / Representative from Village of Richland
Denise Barrons, At Large Board Member /
y

Absent: Robin Madaras / Representative from City. of Parchment

&
Also present were Building Official, Mike Alwine; K&/g&;\?@ttorney, Robb Krueger,;;;//gfﬁce Coordinator/Board
Liaison, Penny Cassidy and one other citizen. //é/{/f%/ “

“for the minutes:”

Terry Mclver in Comstock Township (at h/o’/{é/)//////
Steve Leuty in Kalamazoo Township (at horﬁﬁl )

Don Smith in Pine Grove Township (at home)%g
Lysanne Harma in Richland To;g/r}//g/mp
Kim Lewis in the Village of Richla nd (at home)

di{at h
Denise Barrons in Kalama?z wnship:(;
£

Board Members prior to the Board Meetir
as Item D. undé isiness. A moti

i

the addition. seconded by:Mr. Leu
% //‘// T

N% ﬁ}/} Barrons, Harma, Smith, Leuty, and Mclver.

Citizen Comments - There were no citizen comments.

BUSINESS:

5. a. Reappointment of the At-Large Board Member (2-year term) — Mr. Leuty motioned to
reappoint Ms. Barrons for another 2-year term as the KABA At-Large Board Member, seconded by Ms, Lewis,
and carried with a roll call vote 6-0.

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Lewis, Barrons, Harma, Smith, Leuty, and Mclver.
Nays: None




5. b. Discussion on Board Meeting Venue — After a brief discussion, the board members decided to
continue with the virtual board meetings.

5. c. Amendment to the Demolition Permit Fee Schedule — Mr. Alwine offered information in regard to
the addition of the $75 fee for the detached accessory structures that are under 600 square feet to the KABA
Demolition Information Packet. Mr, Leuty motioned to approve the addition to the Demolition Permit Fee
Schedule, seconded by Ms. Lewis, and carrted with a roll call vote 6-0.

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Lewis, Barrons, Harma, Smith, Leuty, and Mclver,
Nays: None

5. d. Construction Board of Appeals Guidelines — After brief discussion, the policy will be tabled to the
June 15" Board Meeting, allowing additional time for the Board Members to review,
¢(////.
KABA Board Member Comments — Ms. Lewis stated that the \Q/I/I/a;/é/}e///{/f/f Richland will be celebrating 150
years in July. Mr. Mclver announced a ribbon cutting ceremony//f/o%@l//érrill Park on May 26%. Ms. Barrons
i

thanked the Board Members for re-appointing her. Ms, Harm; har '/e;;/‘zy]e Board Members for their

Ahanked:
e A
.

;,///’/
KABA Staff Comments — Ms. Cassidy announced th;: o

the 20 audit has been ,,///W//Pleted and the financial

(€

statements will be presented at the June 18% Board Meeting. Mr. Alwine provided:an update of the current
// 4

permits being submitted. )/}/2 /9

’///// . i //////
There was no further business. Ms. Lewis motion to adiou?/%h _béatd meeting, seconfi/e//d-._pv Mr. Mclver,

and carried with a roll call vote 6-0. ko

iz

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Leuty, and Mclver.




Reports / Lists — May 2021




1 abey

80°0P8'6LL

$Z'596'6-

O'569's
P9099'¥L-

2e'508°881

vEGE9' |-

00 L8¥'
¥£'260't-

99°0r¥ 061

66°€L0'G

00'€L8'vS

L0'66L 61

19'99¢'681

1z ‘gz few

asuejeqg Buipug
SUOIISBSURIL| MAN 2101

Swia)l £ - s)PaLs pue sysodag
SWIY G| - SAWAed pue $y99Yo
SUORIESURI] MaN

LZ0Z/8Z/S0 JO Se djue|eg Jaysiboy
SUCIIESURI] PRIEI|IUN JEI0L

swiayl gl - sppal) pue spsodag
SWY LI - SJuswked pue syosaysy
SUOIJBSURL] PaJea|suf

8oUE)Eg palea|n
suojoesUEl] paleal) [E101

Swa)l 6B - sUpesD pue sjisodag
SWa ¥ - Sjuswiey pue syossyo
SUOIoBSURL] PaJES|D
aoueleg Bumuibag

1202/82/50 Buipu3 polad ‘LaNS / Buryosyy - 501

Arewwing uonel|Iouo29y

Auoyiny Buipjing ealy cozeweje)y

b2IL0/90
Wv ZZ:LL



230 | abed

suonoesuel] palea|n

saueeg Suiumbag

00°05- r (pejeoued qof} g61-00-1z8d - punysy JBUMOBWOH / UohN(] paig L¥95 LZ0Z/E L/S0 prEle)
00°0LL- r (994 nuuad paonpai} §61-20-L28d - PUNJBY SI9PIING pUe LORIMIISUOD SUOISIDIOD 0¥9S LZ0Z/EL/S0 ¥98UD
00'€02- b sdwels 001 (0g) @ "sdwess 0z (%) ‘sdwess 66 (00g) VYO Isod ZP9S 1Z0T/EL/S0 3o3UD
69 Opt- M PJBDIRISBIA - NDO ¥E9S LZ0T/EL/S0  HO8UD- lwd g
00°069 r (suonosdsu| ¢1) 12/£0/50-20/50 ¥90pped NS 9295 LZ0Z/EL/S0  0BYD- ud Ng
00°006- IS (suonosdsu| g1) 12/30/50-20/50 POOAA 2ASIS £FO5 LZOZ/ELIGD  NOBUD- Hud Mg
00°000'L- A {suonoadsul 0z) LZ/0EM0-6ZA0 oo Bnog SE9G LZOZ/EL/S0  MOBUD-jwd g
00°00g'L-  p (suoloadsu) quinid GL 7 USRI | 1) 1Z/80/50-20/S0 S90IMDG JWHBYSIeY ] Aus) £€96 LZ0ZIEL/S0  ADBYD- wd g
60°LGS- M {L2/60/50 /M) lloskeg sepn-enls HOV L20Z/ZL/50 Yooy Aungen
98°225'2Z- P {12/60/50 3/M) l01heg LP6 Wuog - (Sy|) Anseau] JojdeQ  Sdld3 LZOZZL/G0 P8y Aigen
06°266'9- 8 {1.2/60/50 JiM) oshed DINIBG [|0IABH SHOOTHAND) HOV LZ0zZ/LL/s0 38yl Aligen
002t~ S 92/%0 ‘61/v0 Bumow BJEJ) UMET WIBPON 0£9S 1Z0Z/00/50  99UD- Juid Iig
5206 M LE/LEIS0-LO/SD $3IMRS al|gnday LESS LZ0Z/90/S0  ¥09uD- Jwd Iig
g1'882- S L2220 v2iS0 ABrau3 siswnsueD 6295 LTOZ/O0/S0  28yD-wd ig
00 00%- I3 (suoypadsu| 8} LZ/OSH0-6T/v0 3I0pped 10og TEYS LZ0Z/90/S0  HIHYD-wd g
00685 3 (d0Z (2} + 81y 6z°8) 12/08m0-21/40 (0Z2) 1s8ld Jeag 8795 L202/90/50  308uD- Iwd 11a
00056+ I8 (suonoadsul quINIY 6 7 YOBIN OL) LZ/0SHO-GZ/H0 S80S dINHIYIIeL Aus) £E£9G L20Z/90/S0  MI8uD- w4 19
09482 9/5G#4D Way Juswihed anssiay ubisaq 3 Bupsauibul puowpay L295 L20Z/90/50 *#3UD
00°5¢- 3 {irews U1 1s0l} 9256410 - wawded doig 5934 - ISMUL @ Jueg ueBIyoIW wayInog LE0ZIPOIS0 #I8UD
08" Lot M (9g'g2¢) aleatin 9 (¥Z'68) uoud - JuswasINqWITY M 2Ry ‘Bumy $Z95 L20Z/F0/S0 3D
LELLG I (z2'2a¥) abeain 2 (597PE) BuOUd - JusWIsINqUIDY v uayda)s Aoy 9295 LZ0ZH0/50 #8UD
L9vss- I8 120z [udy ProuuNAuEBILOIR JO 1S YE9S LZOZ/OS/X0  WoRYyD Aliger]
00°0}- M {(uanumIBA0 YOBUD) YEO-E0-1Zdd - PuUNIaY sad1uag Bulquinidg Jouadng 2295 LZOT/BTIFD balle]
0005 3 {uslumIBA0 Y0BYD) ZHH-£0-0ZINd - PUNIOY "au) “Buioos  Bugesy JaoqeIN £295 LZ0Z/6T/H0 38D
LEBLL- I8 L2/6L/S0-02/%0 Wwog Japeysd €195 LT0Z/BZ/F0  M0auD- ud iig
00052 S (suonosdsu) quinid  / UPAN €) LZAE/P0-8LI¥0 SaTIABS dINABYdIRY] Aus) 1295 LZ02/6Z/0  MO3UD- hwid Hig
20612 r Ja1do2 eqIyso) [BIOUEULY BIUSLIY J2BIS) G196 LZ0Z/6ZiP0  I8UD- Jwd g
00°006- 8 {suonoadsu) O1) LEMWEF0-8LI¥0 ¥oopped J003 0295 1L208/62/70  MO9UD- Jud nig
00°054- 8 (suoladsu| quinid 6 / UOSIN §) 1Z/v2/P0-8L/¥0 s/ug dsul panosddy @iels/sefe yoing 5195 L202/62/70  HI8uD- Jwd g
00°006- 8 (suonoadsul g1) LZwEH0-8LI¥0 noas Bnog ¥L9S LZ0Z/BEP0  H08YD- Jwd g
00000 M 0202/1€/21 3/A 10} ppne UESLIBISOD JOUB 8195 LZ0Z/BT/P0  YI8UD- hwd Ing
00°0pL- r (uapuMaA0 493Y2) 82 1-C0-LZINd - PUNEY "au] *Buruegipuoy Jiy g BunesH dr 8095 L20Z/ZTIHO ptllie}
00°0¢g- r (uswdediano) LiL-20-1ZNd - PURley BunesH 0865 1202/L€/£0 %03yD
SWAY| 6F - SIUsWIAed pue SYI3Yo
29'99£°G81
asue[eg unowy 49 owap aeN wny ajeq adA)

1202/82/50 Buipuz pouad ‘1GNNS / Bunioay) - 0501
[1e}o UONBII2UCIDY
Auoyiny Buipjing eaty oozewepey

L2IL0/20
WY vZ:L1



L)o g abed

DO°00L r 09018SE6 # QI usodag LZ0Z/S0/S0 usadag
00'S0L 8 962£25E6 # QI ¥sodag L20Z/F0iG0 usodsg
ST9LLL r ysodaq 120Z/0/50 usodaq
00'Gtr 3 nsodag L202/20/50 ysodaqQ
oo'eze 3 99E9vFEE # QI usodag LZ0Z/E0/G0 usodeq
00042 M usodsq LZOZ/EO/G0 usodag
00'sZz IS £0L8STEE # Al usodaqQ LZ0Z/E0/50 usodag
00°LOL r £18vrrEs # Gl usodaqg LZ0Z/E0/50 usodag
00004 M 68LPSPEE # QI Asodag LZ0Z/E0/G0 ysodeg
00'SY 3 82609vE6 # QI Nsodag LZ0Z/E0/S0 usodeg
00'SEY 3 87198226 # QI Usodag LZ0Z/OE¥0 ysodeg
00'20 M L89¥LEES # Q| Usodag LZ0Z/0EMH0 usodag
00's¥ r SSS60EES # Al Hsodag LZ0Z/0E/H0 usodag
00°S¥ 8 £0TB92E6 # QI Hsodsq LZ0Z/0EH0 ysodsg
00°0SE r 68YFPZEG # QI Wsodag 120Z/62/¥0 ysodag
00022 s £+LETZE6 # I hsodag LZ202/6Z/%0 usodeg
00°00L 3 0262516 # QI Hsodsg L20Z/82/%0 ysods
00°00L p 5028ZLE6 # gl Isadaq L20Z/8TI¥0 usodaq
Sway gg - SPpaID pue spsoda
LO'66. 61 SJUBWARY pUE Sy2aU7) [elo]
o0st- r Yiow 10} sea4 juswabeuepy ysed $984 - Jsnu L yueg ueBiydIN wsyines HOVY LZ0Z/LEIS0 08U
00056~ 3 (suonoadsur quinig €1 / Y29 9) LZ/Z2/50-9L/SO SA0INIBG diNMBYdTeYY ALl 6595 L202/LZiS0  MO8uD- hwd g
6Z'GOS'L- LZ0g sunp 1ans BUIIUO LZOZ/LZIG0  PRUD- Wud g
G6'L5G- 3 (L2/ezis0 2 oiked 1sgpTeRID HOV 120z/92/50  02ud Aungen
TrIes'T I3 (L2rez/an ) 1oked L¥6 W04 - (SH1) Anseau| jo ideg HOV LZ0Z/92/60  ¥93uD Aupgen
6%°200'L- s (Lzrezian 3mn) 1ouked 20IAIBG ||0IAR SHOOGHAND HOVY LZ0Z/SZ/S0  93ud Algen
9g'L0L'S b LZ/08/90-10/90 Plalyg anjg sso40 8anig WU LZOZ/PZ/GO  PRUD-1ud g
0619 M feuedde vavM w04 ssauishg UeIBUIN 158 LG9S LZ0Z/OZISO  MAduD- lwd IS
£0'92- M (stewnse) 12/£2/50-60/20 (tomagpislepy oozewe|ey jo AUD PPAS LEOZ/OZ/SO 984D~ Jwd g
oF LLgr h 12/0£/90-10/90 soueInssy 8y ung 8¥95 LTOZ/OZ/SO  PBUD- W g
LE°509 3 12/20/90-80/50 eNIBL 6v95 L20Z/0Z/S0  ¥03UD- g g
Lt Lpe- r 120z aunr BoURINSU| DINT ov95 LZOZ/OZT/S0  MIBUD- Wud g
0Q00F L {suonaadsul §2) 1Z/G1L/50-60/50 no2g BnoQ S¥95 120Z/0Z/S0  Moaud-hwd g
0000L L (suonoadsup quinid 21 / YoBN L1) L2/5LIG0-60/G0 $3DIIBG JINMRUDIRYL ALa] 0595 1Z02/0Z/G0  M0auD- hud g
LIt b s|amol Jaded § sadojanus ez 8€95 LZOZ/ELS0  09UD-lud g
00°'S¥- 3 {usnumIBAD YoBUD) €1 L-L0-1.2dd PURyay 071 ‘Buiquinig opueng BEYS LZOZ/ELISO 84D
aouejeg unowy D oway aweN wnN ajeq adA)L

1202/82/50 Buipu3 powlad ‘LGS / Bunoayd - 0sol
1'B39(Q UOL}el[1oU0I0Y
Auoyiny Bulpjing ealy cozewejey

12120190
WY ¥Z:LL



L)o ¢ obeg

00°001L ~ 9/18/Z¥6 # Q1 ¥sedag 1.20Z/81/50 uscdaq
00001 IS 8ZE0LTP6 # Q] ¥sodag LZ0T/81/S0 usedag
00842 IS SLPSE PG # Q] Usedag L20Z/L1IG0 nsedag
00°0LL p ¥92012v6 # Q1 ¥sedag L2Z0Z/L1IS0 usedag
00521 IS ££€202p6 # Q1 ¥sodag LZ0Z/L1IG0 usedag
0052l P ZLSTOTH6 # Q1 Wsodaq L202/L1/S0 ysedag
00621 I3 LEZL5016 # Q) ¥sodag LZ0Z/+1/50 usedag
00°5+S I3 9¥9Z00F6 # A1 ¥sodag LZ0Z/E1/50 usedag
00'05¢ M L6E1LZBE6 # (1 Hsedaq L202/21/50 usodag
00'€9L r £¥6LGEE6 # QI usedag L20Z/21/50 usedag
00651 pr ZZre6es £ al wsedag LZ0Z/Z S0 usedag
00'5¥ p Z£661L6£6 # Al usodag L2022 1IS0 ysodag
000 p ysodaq 10210 Juug Isled  L1S06Qa L2022 LIS0 PRETTIEE:
oo I~ ysodagq 10210 v usydels Aoy Z160£QQ 1202/ LIST PRENRIER
000 r usodaq paug W Auued ‘Apisse 0150800 LZ0E/Z /G0 yosyshey
000 r usodaq paug o [BRYII ‘BuMY  60S0SAA LZO0E/ZH/SE $98u2ked
00922 r £46028€6 # QI usodag LZ0Z/11/SD ysodaq
00802 r £26169€6 # QI usodsg LZ0Z/LLISD sodsg]
00°9g2's IS ysodag 1202/0 /S0 usodag
00'€22'2 r ysodeq LZOZIOLISD ysodsq
00651 r 62¢1Z8E6 # QI 1sodag L20Z/0L/G0 ysodaqg
00521 r ¥2£808€6 # Q| usodag LZ0Z/LISO usodeq
00°GZ1 r 26L962£6 # QI ¥sodaQ 120Z/0L/S0 usodag
00'9Z¢ S S1ZP0LE6 # dI HsodaQ 1202/20/50 hsodaq
00°£62 p LR0¥TLEE # QI ¥s0daQ 1202/20/50 nsodag
00041 S LPOLLLEE # Al Nsodaq LZ0Z/L0/50 usodag
00084 b SE160.€6 € aI usodag 1202/20/50 usodag
00°GLL r 88GC69E6 # AI Hsodag LZ0Z/L0/S0 usodag
00°G0L r 05552266 # QI wsodag 1202/L0/50 usodsg
00892 r ¥EBEG9EH # (I wsodag 1202/80/50 usodaq
05°982 r L6¥Z99E6 # QI Wsodaq LZ02/90/50 usodaq
007081 b 6€L209€6 # QI usodaQ +Z02/30/50 usodaq
00°0L1 r LLEVSOEE # QI Wsodag LZ0Z/80/60 usodaq
00°001 b 0B6E9EE # (I Hsodag 1202/90/50 usodaq
00102 b LL55265€6 # QI Hsodag 1Z02/50/50 ysodag
00'591 r $80Z85€6 # Al Hsodag L202/50/50 nsodaq
3Juejeg unowy 1o oway aweN winy aeq adAl

1eja(g Uonel|iduoday
Auoyiny Buipjing ealy cozeweley

1202/82/50 Buipu3g pouad ‘1ams / Buiyosys - 0501

121 L0190
WV ¥2:L}



L 3o ¢ abeg

DOELB8'FS s)paJDy pue sysodag] [e1o ).
0cs S IS0 1202/1.£/50 usodeg
00'£80'L 3 nsodag LZ0Z/82/50 usodag
00958 Iy yseq - ysodag 1202/82/50 ysodag
00°0EL r used - ysodag 1.202/82/50 ysodag
00°'S0L I3 yseD - ysodag L202/82/50 usodeq
00's6 3 yseo - yisodeq L20eg/821s0 ysodag
oLz Iy ysed - ysodag 120Z/82/50 ysodag
0oLz 8 yses - ysodag 120Z/82/50 ysodaqQ
0oerz'z r usodag 1202142150 usodsg
000 M isodaq 10240 o 19_UDIN BUIMY  £L50€0Q 1202/92/50 Hasuaked
000 M ysodaq 1auq W Auuad 'Apssed  vLG0Saa LZ0ZI9T/S0 Hoaydhed
000 8 nsodaq JoauQ Juu3z sy §L50€0d 1202/9Z/50 Moayshed
000 M ysodaq 12410 v uaydals ‘Ao 9L50£a0 1202/92/50 NeaIAed
oo'seh 8 9LL85¥6 # Ot UsedaQ 1202/52/50 wsadag
00°004 M 6L1Z19v6 # Qt isodag LZ0Z/SZ/S0 isedag
00001 M SE08/5¥6 # At usedag L202/52/50 usedaq
002929 M usedag LZOT/HTIS0 nscdag
00+0Z'L M nsodag LZ0Z/72/S0 ysedagQ
00'202Z ~ BLGLZSPE # QI ¥sedaq LZ0THT/S0 ysodag
00'59L IS LZEZPSYE # Q1 Usodaq LEITHTIS0 usedag
00'sY M ¥5.78576 # Q1 Usedag L202/+2/50 usodag
00°04L M YOPYEHP6 # Q1 Hsodag L20Z/1L2/50 usedag
00°LEL p SL¥PGHYS # ()1 Hsodag LZ0T/12/S0 Isedaq
00'6ZL r ELBYEPYE # (1 ¥Sodag 1L20Z/12/50 usodsqg
00'6EE M BL08BEY6 # Q1 ¥sodag 120Z/02/50 Isodag
000LE M B0EL9E¥6 # Q1 Wsodag 1L202/02/50 nsodag
00'see M LLL0LEYS % T) Hsodag L20Z/02/SC0 ysodsg
00°0LL 7 EPBYBEYE # (1 ¥sodeg 1.20Z/02/50 usedeq
00152 7 LP890EP6 # Ol ¥sodag LZ0Z/61I50 ysodaQ
00'9gL p £.4L28¥6 # QI usodag LZ0Z/6LIS0 ¥sodaqQ
0008 S 95Z90EYE # Al sodsq LZ0Z/BLIS0 usodaq
00°85¥'s) M usodsQ 1202/8L/50 psodaq
Q0LEL'9 M usodaq 120Z/81/S0 nsodag
ST'LEE'L M ysodaq 120Z/2 1150 usodag
00°6z r £.88.2%6 # QI usodag LZ0Z/BLISO hsodaq

asuejeg unowy  J19 ow3p aweN wnN aleq adAf

lle3eQ uopeljIouodaYy
Auoyiny Buipjing eaJy cozewe|ey

1202/82/50 Buipu3 pouad ‘LgINS / Bupioayd - 050l

LZ2i20190
WY vZLi



£30 g abed

ueeg paled|d

Z€'508'881 1202/82/G0 J0 SE Saueleq Ja)siBay
PEGEO L SUDIIOESUES | PaJesduUn [BJo L
00'48%'T sjpaln) pue sysedag [Blol
005l L2429/¥6 # (I ysodag L20Z/82/50 usodaq
00'502 SZTEOPLYG # QI #sodag LZ0Z/8TIG0 usodaQ
00'6Zh Z60889.¢6 # QI ysodag 1202/82/50 usodsQ
00002 £2¥589%6 # Q| ysodeg 1202/L2150 usoda(
0058} 89B069Y6 # Al ¥sodaq 1202/£2150 usodsq
00'82) £0058976 # QI ¥sodeq 1202/£2150 usodeq
00044 §19514¥6 # QI nsodag L20Z/LZ/60 usodag
00 %01 90.28916 # Q| #sodag L20Z/LT/50 usodag
00°5€2 ZG6R50VE # Q| ¥sedag 1202/92/50 wsadaQ
00°502 929199%6 # () usodaq 1202/92/50 usadaq
00°£21 61 ¥PEOYE # Ol ¥sodsq LZ02/92/50 usodag
00421 9505£9%6 # Al ¥sodaq 1202/92/50 usodag
00'SZ1 L0BZE9Y6 # QI usedag L202/92/50 usodaq
00°501 8Z99Y9¥6 # QI UsodsQ 120Z/9¢/50 usadag
00001 LOEPESY6 # QI ¥sodaq 120Z/92/50 wsodaq
00'1s ZBEEEYYE # 1l Wsodag 1202/92/50 usodeqQ
swal 91 - supas) pue spsodeq
¥L'e60' syswied pue syoeyD [Bl10L
VAN 1202 Ae Ployun pyueBIRIW Jo B)els 8696 1L20Z/9T/60  oRUD Aungen
00°G5- (patasues qol) L¥t-£0-023d - pungey JURBIF puoweIg 1695 1202/L2I50 ez
0095 (poreouen qol) 191-£0-123d - pungey “IU| 'SI0J0RIUOS [BDM09T JaiyBidwen 0995 1202/£2/50 »ayo
10°642- Jaidoo equyso L |EIDUBUI] BOUSWY JBRIS GG9§ LZ0Z/LZIGO  ¥oBUD-wd g
0006+ {suoyoadsu| 6} LZ/zz/50-91/50 ¥oopped Hoog 9695 LZ0Z/L2/50  ¥o3uD-lwd g
0C 02 {manay ue|d + suonosdsu| 61} 12/22/50-91/50 poog Briog PGOS LZOZALTISO  OBUD- ud g
00'526- (d0z (2) + sy SL¥LY Lzrzso-1o/s0 (022) 158l Jeag €696 LZ0Z/LT/S0  RYD- wd (ig
00 g¢- (uswAed 19A0) £¥Z-0-L.TNd - PUN}RN [EOILELOBIN RE 2G9S 1L.20T/02/G0 pietllie)
00 00 (suonzadsu| g) LZ/S LIS0-60/50 AD0ppEd ROOS 196 LZ0Z/0Z/S0  ¥0eyD- jwd g
00°6- (uenumIBA0 %93Y9) 98 1-L0-LZINd - PUNjaY D71 Asweaud J20lswe) LLOS 1L20T/ZEIPD A3BYD
00°LS- {p=|soued gof) ¥16-gL-0ZNd - Punjay S@IAIBS [B2IUBLOSIN B JOlI0g Wnuoadg 0L9S LZ0Z/ZZ/V0 bt i)
SWat LI - Suawied pue syasysn
SUGIoBSUEBI| pales|dun
90°0vF'06 1
66'¢L0's SUOHDBSUEL] PaIealD [eloL
L
aJueleg unowy 45 owap awen wnN ajeq adfy

120Z/82/50 Buipu3 pousd ‘19SS / Bupsays - osolL

[lejog Uoel|Iouoddy
Ruoyiny Buipjing ealy oozewe|ey

L2IL0/90
WY vZiLE



130 g abey

00'65 G09PBOSE # Q| ¥sodag LZ0Z/0/90 usodeq
00'9¥Z £2¥L€0S6 # Q| ¥sodag L.20Z/E0/90 nsedag
00041 YRYBEEYE # Al #sodag LZ0Z/E0/90 Isodeq
00'SZTL $G5566¥6 # Al ¥sodag L2GZ/E0/90 ysodeq
00°s0L 61056606 # Al Nsodaq LZDZ/E0/90 isodaq
00°Z62 ¥68856¥6 # Al #sodaq 1202/20/90 nsodaq
00°1€2 8.9096¥6 # Al Hsodaq 1202/20/90 usodaq
0004} L990FEYE # QI sodag L202/20/90 usodeg
00651 2£9296¢6 # () Hsodag LZ0Z/20/90 ysodag
00651 9LZ9E6YS # QI Usodag 1202/20/90 ysodagQ
00°004 PSZOERS # Al Hsodag 1.20Z/20/90 ysodag
0r6L LZ8956%6 # Q| sodsq 1202/20/90 ysodag
00°'LES ysodag L20Z/10/80 usodeq
00502 686788¥6 # QI usodag L20Z/10/90 usodeg
000EL 960888¥6 # QI Jisodag L202/1.0/20 ysodag
00504 7260.8%6 # QI usodag L202/1.0/90 usodeq
0055 SPLTLEP6 # Al usodaq 1202/1L0/90 usodaq

swall £Z - sypas) pue sysodaq

¥9°099°tL- sjuawAed puB SHO3YD |BI0L
¥ L5s- {1.2/90/90 I/M) lloshey 1sapnIeaID HOY LZ0Z/60/90  Raud Angen
#1°0€5'2- {LZ/A0/90 TiM} lI0IAed Lb6 U0 - (SH1) Ansead) joidaq  Sd143 LZ0Z/60/90 294D Aungen
116660 {L2/90/90 F/M) llosfed S0IAIDG JIQUAR SHO0ENIND HOV L202/80/90 084D Anngen
5206 LZ/0E/90- 1090 $80195 Dlgndey 6995 LZOZ/E0/90  ¥9UD- hwud g
rL 26 Jaded sased (2 Howaz TL9G LTOT/EO/O0  ¥OIYD- Wi g
0L'¥6- Jaded sapoid 0gx9g (1} % 005XQE (L) anig-fey 4995 LZ0S/E0/O0  I_YD-1Wig I8
58'6L1- Jsnbny - sunp ou| yolep WSy 8995 1Z0Z/E0/90  ¥09YD-wwd |'g
16'6LL- VZ/61/90-02/50 wwo) jsueyn #9956 LZ0Z/20/90  ¥09UD- Jwid g
86'6ZZ LEIEZISO-EZiF0 ABisuz s1awnsuo) $99G 120Z/E0/90  09UD- Jud (g
00'00g- (suonoadsu| @) 12/62/80-€Z/G0 ¥ooppEd HOOS 0495 1202/80/90  %08UD-iwd [ig
00°Gre- {07 (2) + sl §2°+) L2/L8/60-72/80 (022) Jsaud teag £895 1Z0Z/E0/90  09UD-Jwd Ing
00056 (suonoadsu) 61) LZ/62/50-€Z/50 poag BnoQ §996 1202/S0/90  OSuD- jud g
007000 1+ (suonoadsul quinid 8 / UDaN ZL) LZ/6T/50-£2/50 SO2ISS dNAHBYDIBYL Aua ) 129G LZ0Z/E0/00  dI9UD- jwud fig
ZL'9Es- (25" 9¥v) ebealin 2 (FZ'68) suoud - JuswasINquizy o 9BUDIN ‘UM 1995 1202Z/10/90 ¥23UD
62'689- (+9°¥69) ebealny 3 ($9'pE) BUOUd - JUaWASINqWISY v usydayg *Aoy 2995 1.202/1.0/40 8D

SWa) gL - ﬂ-:mE>m& PUe SYIaYyo

SUGIIESURI] MON
aouejeg unowy 1o Owanw aweN wnp ajeq adA]

1202/82/50 Buipu3 polad ‘LGNS / Bupidayd - 0501
jlejaq uonel|1ouoIDY
Aoyiny Buipjing ealy cozewe|ey

12120/90
WY +Z:L1



£ 40 £ abeg

asuejeg Bupug

wo.ovw.mm_.
¥Z'G96'g- SUONDESUEE] MAN [B10]
0¥'569'S sIpaJD) pue siisodac 1e10L
0troLL yseq - ysodag 120Z/0£/90 nsodag
00051 yse] - ysodag L 202/8E/90 usodaqQ
000lo'z usodaqQ 120Z/20/90 usodag
00°0F+ nsodag L202/20/90 usodag
00'9¥1 696690686 # QI ysodag 1202/70/90 usodag
ocogl £6285066 # QI ¥sodag L202/+0/90 usodaq
aaueeg wnowy JIn oway awepn wrnpy ajeq adAL

1202/82/50 Buipuzg pouad ‘1gs / Bunioayd - 0501
[lej2Qg UOHELIDUOIY
Auoyiny Buipjing ealy oozewe|ey

LZIL0190
WY vei k)



Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

10:10 AM
06/10/21 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis May 2021
May 21 May 20 % Change
Income
4010 - Building Permits 29,471.00 15,128.00 94.8%
4015 - Special Permits 275.00 375.00 -26.7%
4020 - Electrical Permits 8,770.00 13,400.00 -34.6%
4030 - Mechanical Permits 9,061.50 8,715.20 4.0%
4040 - Plumbing Permits 4,607.00 5,987.00 -23.1%
4100 - Zoning Administration 1,7556.00 1,586.25 10.6%
4600 - Investment Income 8.00 3.00 166.7%
Total Income 53,947.50 45,194.45 19.4%
Expense
6200 - Bank Fees 80.00 45.00 77.8%
6500 - Payroll Expenses
6501 - Salary - Building Official 6,250.00 6,250.00 0.0%
6503 - Salary - Building Inspector 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.0%
6505 - Wages - Administrative 6,730.67 6,548.33 2.8%
6510 - Payroll Taxes 1,406.39 1,369.50 2.7%
6511 - LTD/ STD/ AD&D / Life 371.48 371.46 0.0%
6512 - 401A (KABA) 1,103.04 1,092.09 1.0%
6513 - Health Insurance 4,105.24 4372.15 -6.1%
Total 6500 - Payroll Expenses 24,966.80 25,003.53 -0.2%
6700 - Insurance - General 947.35 919.91 3.0%
6810 - Computer Support (External) 195.86 154.98 26.4%
6820 - Accounting Services 14.00 3,145.25 -89.6%
7100 - Office Equipment 275.07 275.07 0.0%
7110 - Office Supplies 186.84 393.47 -52.5%
7115 - Postage 203.00 183.20 10.8%
7130 ' Resource Materials -42.00 110.00 -138.2%
7420 - Lawn Care/Snow Removal 84.00 84.00 0.0%
7450 - Maintenance & Repairs - Office 0.00 31.78 -106.0%
7600 - Utilities 302.02 234.05 29.0%
7550 - Trash Removal 50.25 45.29 11.0%
7600 - Security (Office) 0.00 - 392,65 -100.0%
7610 - Telephone - Office 605.37 600.76 0.8%
7611 - Telephone - Cellular 123.89 125.11 -1.0%
7711 - Contracted Electrical inspector 4,090.00 4,140.00 -1.2%
7712 - Contracted Mechanical Inspector 4,100.00 3,530.00 16.2%
7713 - Contracted Plumbing Inspector 2,650.00 2,150.00 23.3%
7715 - Contracted Zoning Administrator 1,320.00 1,365.00 -3.3%
7800 - Mileage Reimbursement 1,101.52 610.08 80.6%
7830 - Interest Expense 593.37 711.68 -16.6%
Total Expense 41,847.34 44,250.81 -5.4%
Net Income 12,100.16 943.64 1,182.3%

Page 1




| abed

9 L- Y U - : ‘g1- g by e J LTLEPP awoou] JaN
%S L6} PIbLZLL k] L %S 0895591 7607 hE'9L9 81'869°8-
BOY'Z: %o
6558
55660

asuadxy €10y
%z 18 0LLEY LPEZLeY esuadc3 98I 666
N yALR . dx3g )salajy| -
61T LF 96226 - 000 asua
T456'P9 hidd e - %00 oo v0'98% asuedx3 Bululell - oL8L
%z 29'990' k¥ i 000 o00 %8 052 0o05¢ 0T LEEL Juawasinquiey abeally - 0032
i . %00 ErO 28664 fpess 000 ens Bujuoz peroenuay - Sis
- 000 oo.c e mm.mvo 3 200 \nvoo 00026 E..m 1ojeqsjuiwpy bujuoz PEIDEUCD - L2
- 99022 e %00 9 8092 st 00’509’ gos6s et Bochan aoemio - oot
g 000 oo | ULl 05298 CO'080' o8 05" 0529 vz scyoadsul ajaeRuoD - ZL42
%00 . v9'880's L. 00'5EE'L . %0 001 i 00'08¥’ 10y0adsul |esueyoa P
o SO'EE9 ‘0Ez'L %161 ‘0 00'0 %pEL- 00'568'C 00°055 b 2911)93]3 PjORHUOD . LLLL
e 00°0S0'L oo %00 oo | 00'08Z'E o 00'SrL'D 058 1opadsul | SBIETIY - L0LL
Yol'LL . 000 o 00°00g'e Rl %S 6L~ b C0'09L'E SAQIIBN PIECT IS/
%00 00°0 00'008'2 %8 e 00°08L'E 09'LL0°9 e L5 00°009'y 000 q TBIN|[99 - BUOYABIBY - LLOL
%zez 00°056' 09'280°8 %ile 000SPE 000LLY %060 ora R 22140 - suoydalay - 0L8L

> 0 0EL'y o %G . 500 i -1 +r4% 909 so10) N8 - 0054
%856 e 00°0Z1'S o 000 : %Dy . 80°90! {som0
%008 ooors’e 00'051 %00 gL'zl (7R "D S0'€09 ot |BAOWIBY USEL] - 0SSL
%00 00°051 16T2L %0 9z'z08 §LLe o\pw.h._. 66" comy SaMIN - 00SL
%0 L g1'6zL v2'509 %a'L iy 000 o\“o.m rZ'Sh £L008 - sljeday B aoueuIUIRY - 0SPL
%P0~ g 59614 forhd sisy r0 6y %5l e 06'62E T oo mousjere une1 - 0252
% ragl 68 vF 89°6b %98 oz il¥ [%: 0244 e\uv. - L' PEE 00268 I S|R|IOIEN S2INOSIY « BELL
il L Y6 Y iT %99 . ¥2'99 b 1672 00'se 00 asempieH) Jandwoy - 5ZL2
%30 ‘ol BF'Y %0001 00°0 - b 801 000 (1eMy)0G) . GLLL
%L L001€ 000 %00 98802 o00 %000k e LVESH'E sbesod - §
u\“o.o 000 00'GhL %0 00L- 000 0o'Lz- n\ow. L 09 /G8'E BOSaL sa)ddng sa180 - GLLL
%0001 0oa 6rLo wO00L" 56726 000z %0004 03’0 £60E wowdinb3 82,340 - 0044
wEare 00°Zk- 00'0 %9')S- 00'eslL oF L ety 002 YEBLE s301Aag BUIUNOSDY - D299
°%0°00) oo'ee- 00°€EL % 6 Pty SEVPLL Jop e 8L LEY aar'l i) oddng 1SIdWos - pLas
%00 goo b9'L07 %ecez 81'26% dd %660EL oowt 99'S9E'9 f S99 2697 - 0029
%oty st 50969 foidend 00l oowL %20 BE Ve 00071} Iesoueg - SoueInsy - 0L
%z e 2708 craal'e %00 el §5°'861 oy 00098 peciide
eihs 52952 . %l8z 86 cooLz e 67598 asuadx3 [0ABd - 00SQ (9L
%L '0SL'L pietend 99°S61 il 00°0b6 Lb 16 %S9 —— s
%2 Z€- oLolp 00°E69 "eo LE'688 . 05 16161 e 18I0 - sesuadxg ([oikeg - DOSH
%399 R SELYE 9rPEE'ye 0z 58652 % = 000 aoueansu] yjieaH - £1§9
ds . BLPEE'SE %00 00 %00 8900y S¥08Y'S (vaw) vioy - ZLS9
. LI98s'vE %00 000 ow.moﬁ.w %991 ez L6 L LE0'L 87/ 0%aY/ QLS /LT - LISO

" ) 900 u“n_..o. SL2LEY vv‘vcw.w %90 o LIE w.v._.....m. saxe] {|oJAed - 0159

fpdy Srey 949022 %zt 80160° R %00 piraoe’L zevee | arfensiuipy - sabem - 5059
o 15060 S0ss9't %00 e 8 00r'L et 00°£08's 89 L69'E Joyoedsuy Buipiing - Aderes - £059
%e'1S . v Lig o 6L°BYE'L o %E pi- S7E 00052 219130 Bulping - Atejeg - LOS9
e v’ LLE ey %Yz e 09°€54°9 o e ol 00'052 gt | cifed - 00S9
%0'0 e 29'LZL'E . ov'1ES'9 -000° Y%b Gl 2007 BYLEV'E sasuadx3
%E'ES L0 mhm.m £Z¥0L'0L %b'E Q0'00G'S 00 oow,w %bGL- v9'29 saag yueg . 00Z9
. s LAY . '
%65 gees, 00°005'L H0'0 Q0°052'9 0008 . E6'FL Bupsyren pue Bujsiusapy - 0109
%008 00°00Q°S 00686 %00 — 000 070 ssuadxg
. 000SZ'9 . ‘09 o o
%0'08 %0001 aoo . mw,w %00 o0 BWosW |2)eL
. ZIESL oL sLol .
: 4 i %000k .
%0608 %.m 08461 #00 — £O'Z0'0¥ L9 5E0ES AWOIL] JUAMISIAYL - DOSY
%0001 . 05895 S % 55 onpeasINWpY BUloZ - 0oLy
% Lp 08'22L'0e - coEz - uo| 3BUBUIRIO - 0P
6°'164'6C 21°ES6'SL ® or'e k4 wmn 00°600'Z 0o Wmm -:cEwu._ﬂu.”_mmm Buiquinid - orod
. g - o A %8'ES- . oy sp
%0'GSL - arL o, . :

4 m—— £5'9 u\om.mw. $7'999°) ow.%.n 1 s Wm.mae 00 0%9'5 Siulay [EEYDoH omﬁ
%EZE- o sz I9g'L Hi 8L 05281 oo | %6 |E bl 00 PES'D) Siuuod [22)199(3 - 0
%08 el 000 %0"00k D0'PES'S o0Tly'z %2'85 00°L¥3'0 QOEEZ'LE sjuuag [e122dg - 5L0¢
%00 00'0 00508 %E 88" 00'808°9 09 LIS L ,\"_Qm. 00019’ ooegs By

ot 00'8r2'Z g %8 LL Rt 00°252'6 o 00°c8e i awoou|
%L'TOT e 00°685'2) . 00'P51°9 A %00 2o 00'800'85

. 00°0EL'S . %05 00°'56% . 00'2L0'LL
%6 LE S18's 00ZE6'L e 00'0SE bLvaL %E'ETP
%ol Pt 00'085 o 00'GLEDL oo
Y%l 'E2* co.mr . D0'B0L'OF %S LL oz ver Lz uer
. 00'029'6 abueys %
%S'GBE LZ 994
aBueys % 0Z g2
0z 1en AL siseq |enusoy
abueyy v
12/0L/90
120z fey ubnoag Menuer Joug
SS0 !
uosuedwoy Jesp Asld sso B

WY ZL0L
Auoyiny Buip|ing eauy oozewejey



Z obed

668 rrree - awloaul 10N
= —= — - 001" %9911 9117668
%L'S61 PIEISSL §6°ZvT'ZL %ETBLL YO'EYE soore . i S5 P0'0p ssuadxgz (5301
%G L 15'909' 122 92°596'9r2 %b's- 19052 bp YELPE' Ly %yl £oeez 0r ssusdxs 9SIW - 666L
- - : %00 000 0o'e asuadxg )8 - OS82
; - %00 200 000 i . 6l oL
%00 pae oo ‘oL 9 LLL LE°E8S %y LL 60°09 i asuadxg Bujule) - 0181
%G0Z ov29LZ 1PEeCe ““HW‘WF wo.o 000 %00 a0'0 mw.wmw Juswasngu)ay 2BE3|Y - 008L
%006k 0o 0Z'162't .,\..w.om 80013 26L0LL HE'ERY'L 0e'gr oSzl IOENSIUILPY BUIUDZ PAJOENLOY - GLLL
%G 6 €5 P10'E 9E mmm.v a9’ s : X 0TEL %5 izr Q0042 ’ IDIONIT PIG PEIEINOD . DLLL
. 529" 00°058'S % 00'69¢"L 00 i g0 000 W 03 PIO
i e 000 %00 00°0 000 %00 0 00005z 10195d5U] BUIGWIN|d PBISERUOD - £1.1L
%0°00L- oMB , 05z %E'EZ po'ast'z 00°059'2 u\nv.mao.v oo.mmw Pl s6108elSU| |BOHIPYIIIY PEIIBINOT - ZLLZ
%Z'8h 00DES 0L oo.m i %zoL 00'0S5°E 00°00L'F % LIS ooszz 00082t 101a8dsu] [BO}408]F PAIOENUOD - LILL
e L5 oLty e %T - 00'0vL'y 00'060'% %62E1 coove - Jaquiay pleog setlely/ebuetly - 1oL
o 00" 09" LL 000FE'LE % L . i e 000 000 .
ot ' i oc'e aoo #00 - Jenpag - auoydere - 1194
fos 00°0Gk 00054 %00 . i - bty 68'EZL - auoydaa, -
%00 ’ o1l - 1'5ZL 63'CTL %0 . Qo1 - auoydaja) - 0L9L
bl eyt et "_Mm.m 94009 16509 %50 e0s 66'909 {2310) &unoas - 009L
%90 Booe e %0001 o'Z6E 000 %0001~ 66°7v 000 [EAGW@Y YSEIL - 052
%1'69- L9°2i8 mh”mm_. %Mwwr erop <z 0s %0001 mN”ev co.NmN SO - 00SL
%a'ZL- sg'9ze Nw.twr_. fopcnd SOpEZ 20°Z08 o008 L1731 mm.o #1346 - Siedoy B GIEUBIUIBH - 09p.
%L Ll B6°45H'L omAm 9 iy a0 byl 000 %00 000 . [EAOWSY MOLIGISIED UME - OZPL
oo 5L°99¢ 9'96¢ %0001 o . e 00'Lb 00'ZF :
o ) 08011 %o0 oo're 00'v8 . 00°58e S[ELIEN 92UNOSeY - OELL
fopdrend ol o %ZOEL- 00°DLL 002t %0001 0o'a iy (arempjog/asempiey) Jndwod - $71L
%ESZO'L ST azee s o 000 oty 0w 000 Moy suL
%262 §5°45Y'9 LLELSy il 0z'egl 00°€02 %Y 0G'o 9651 sa|1ddng 20140 - ObIL
fintad e o o\._m.mm. PR} v8'981 %0004 oo,o 0z wawdinba 22140 - 0012
%6 sL21e bR "o'0 10622 1052 b zz 58 o z S0 Bunamone . o25d
%y0L 22'206'L 02 660°7 %986 SzopL's 00l o5 1ac 00'688 MM.mmF {ipuseixs) poddng Jsinduwes - 0,09
%90l 00’810’y £C'682'8 foodbd el il bt a6pst s 3. 12597 - 0089
%L L9820, 66 _.m_..\. v 000 000 %00 000 oo. |e13UBE - SOUEINSY - 009
%L NI 00'€r0'Z %00 000 e Jopid BL'H06 Vo' L6
%18 £9'90S't 26'98L'Y %0'E - S sosuadxg [[0keq - 0059 (104
609" 0- ‘200" 08°996'vZ %062
%Ll 00'SL0'624 LTE09'LEL %Z'0 £5°'200'5Z . ; — ‘o0 - ssuodea 105 - 0050
00 000 %o 000 co'0 %0 m mm.m - VZ-S0L'y soueINsU) RN - £159
Foy . %l e vEsoL Y ke oL oL {vavoi) vioy - 2459
i e i o SLeic'y : -o0pg" 1 vaYA
ol Zac00e Mm.mmw_ww .,m.“n_.r 60'Z80't PO'EOL'L Yoz 2e JoBeat ww.mm 37 @AY/ QLS QLT - LISY
%Ll Z6'£00'9 byt %00 o' Lie oY LI %00 mv.mmn.m eoLhl saxe) ||IARd - OISO
opdd Seoves SE'BZLL %LE o5'6st’L 6€ 90 g A 0£'508'9 AnENSIUIWPY - S3BEM - 5059
ook ik "9EL'PE %82 EE'8re'9 490849 e OE- Jeses 00'000°6 so10edsu) buipiing - Aejes - £059
%2k S8vpL EE A . 00°000'G 00°000'S e EE 00'005' gzt 121010 Buipling - Aeles - L0g9
fiel OposLee mm.mwm.mm wum.m a0052'9 00°052'9 %E'EE- C0SLEE 00" 0g5e'e " sesuadxg yosked - 0059
%G k- POiQL'ZE ol . eo0.1 ued . 0029
X . . %6°09- Q0'SLL 000Gt Bu|S|HaAPY - OLOY
%L 9EL 00502 SGE9Y %8'2L i mw.mm %0001 00'0 0613 Buneme pue Buisierny asuadxg
%L G SLoLS 0R'65T %00 00°0
. . SWC] 1B)0 L
. . EL - 1pE" %P GL0'FL LHLLE ZO'BEL'EY
%sgLL E7'E60'OYL 1L8ZZ'6LE %t Bl SHPBL'GE 05 LY6'ES 2 - - ol owssent 0300
- : : 0'E ao'g %TEL ) L uonensuwpy Buuog - oLy
%9 Ly 8685 Lyt mem_. mw.wmm.r 00°G8 ) %S558E 04'48¢ mm.wwm t JUSADIGMT SOURLIPIO - DEOY
%SG 5959' oo.w.ﬁ L %00 000 00 %00 00'0 Wm.nmm. . siwag Buiquind - opoYy
7003~ 08 LEl, sz %i ez 00°286' 00'209'% %0'001 009 AN UL TEOIBUOSI - OEOP
Ky Ly oo gy %O'E 0z5LL'e 04'190'6 %0'90E'ES 0a'az 7 1bp'g SHWIag [BDU3031T - OZOP
%E'BL 0Zvi6vE 02469 29 iy 00 0OF'EL D00LL'B %0°00L 000 00°4pt sjuuag [e1aads - GloP
%Z02 0064628 00'BE9'SY %m.mvm- 00528 00°6.Z %0001 000 om.wmm.mw S04 BUIPING - 0107
o pdiag Mm.omm.mt %g'¥6 0082151 00'LLVEZ %000l 000 0 swosu|
%GBLE 0U'S5L'9Y z
iy
Ay abueysg v, 1z sy Lz 4
abueyn 9, 0z Aep - ver LZ Aew - uer abueysy v o7 Aepy 1z Aew .
TVLOL
s|seg [eruady
Kenue
1Z0Z Ael yBno.yy r v Z0b50
uosuedwon lea ) Asld SSO0T g Jjold

WY 210}
fuoyiny Buip|ing ealy oozZewueey|



| abegq

9€'188°L Y%L G5 rZ'80g0z- 66°ZYTTL %6°8EL ze'chl's 9L'00L'2L awoau| 18N
¥9'051'£09 %1004 ¥Z'5eR'9re 8.°G86'0¥Z %906 80°Z9r'zr vE LR LY asuadxz (g0l
000002 %00 000 00°C %00 000 0o asuadx3 oSIN - 666L
00°000'2 %00 000 000 %00 000 00’0 Aepng Ended - 0Z6L
Lr'B2EE 187666 asuadx3 jsasaqu| - 0£8L
60°009°L %666 00'ZeZ'L 0Z'1E2'h %00 000 000 asuadxa Bulnesl - 0182
o0oorL'z) %628 00'622's 9E'GBG'Y %S0l 00'SFO'L Z8'LoL'L juawasinquiiay abealty - 008L
00°068°G 0002e'L Jojejsiiupy Butuoz paisenues - §LLL
00°002'LE %9201 00 LIS LL 00052l %T 66 00'¥8L'2 oL'ese's Jo3aedsu) Buiquinig pajoenuoy - gL2s
00'009'SY %L 2L 00 %956l 02616'22 %S b 00282'e 0000Lt J0p0adsu| |e2iueyDR PAJORIUOD « ZLLL
00°00t'SS %9°66 00'8L¥'1LE 00'0vE'LZ %8 L6 00 45F'¥ 000607 1032adsu] 1231393|3 PEISLIUOS - LLLL
0000004 %0°0 00'0 000 %00 000 0co Jopoadsu) Buippng pajoesuesD - gLLL
00°00Z'L %299 00'622 000G} %00 000 000 lagquialy paeog slewalyebie Ty - LoLL
00'g.le %00 000 000 %00 000 (o1 s|gaddy jo pseog Bulp|ing - 0022
00°008'L %g'T8 00°054 £2'129 %928 00'051 68'EZL Lenjag - avoydalal - 1192
00°02¢'2 %S'66 00'050's £0°GEQ'E %Z 66 00019 1£°509 a310 - suoydapL - 0L9L
00°0FS %8BS 00°622 $.°661 %00 000 oora (22140) Hunoag - 0092
00°002 %L 6L 00°082 Z8'26l %500} 00°08 §2'05 [eAOWISY Ysel) - 0552
00¥ZH'e %6 LLL 00 Lpb'L 0OBLO°L %9'Z6 00'9Z8 FAVEAt1 sanunn - 0054
00°000'S Y%¥ ¥6 00°02% ¥9'96¢ %00 000 00'G 20O - slleday *§ doueUURY - O5TL
00'¥8r'T %E 16 oo'aEL'L 00'80L'L %0'004 00'v8 00'+8 leAcwWay MOUg/BIe]) UMET - OZ1L
00'00Z'61 %00 00°000's 000 %00 00°009'} 000 asuadx3 esearpuey - 00vL
00°000'L %¥'66 00'00% 02L8¢ %0°004 00’0 00er S{EMaE 32UN0S3Y - OEhL
00'/86'S %066 00°029'% LLEISY %00 000 00C (auemyograsempiey) soindwos - §Z1L
00°000°L %6 LLL 00'608 OF'SBS %0'EZL o0'gol 00'0z sbeisod - §112
00°008'¢ %9'6b 00°008'L R 57) %ETS 00°008 ¥eo8l solddng 93410 - 0LL2
Ze'086'y %B8¥6 606122 026602 %0 004 L0622 losLe Juawdinb3 a3yo - 00kL
00'Z85°TL %b'66 5668 E£68Z'8 %0'00+ o0'vl 00'%L saopaag Bungunoooy - 0zg9
9588501 %856 .8EZoV'L 661512 %6 L6 00°002 98's61 (jewsa)xg) poddng Jandwod - 0Lg9
00°000'0Z %9°95 ‘00'009's 00'EY0'E %00 00°0ZL 000 so94 [eBa7 - 0089
00 esr'ZL %3001 TTLOL'Y T6'9EL'Y %8 001 ErA SE 96 [e13uag - 20URINSU| - 00L9
ar18L'9z8 %466 21705684 20'600° 184 %% 96 9L YIS 08'996'+Z sasuadxz |loihed - 00S9 IP10L
LI'SPE S %5601 rb L8822 £6'200'5T %406 51725y ¥Z'S0L'Y 2oURINSU| tHIEdH - €159
F 58 YL %666 0e'rL0'9 £8'0£0'9 %666 ZProL's POE0LL (vavy) vior - 2159
FATA T %000 0e/58°L 082881 %0 001 9¥'LLE avr'L/g a1/ avav/aALs/ Al - LIS
65 PIE'8L %966 £6'192°2 §8'87. 'L %666 EL'80¥'L 6E°90F'L saxe} ||oifed - 0L§9
08'962°/8 %518 08 'Pil 28 8racl've %L 66 09'€52'9 2970829 aAgesswpy - sabep - 5059
00°000'69 %818 0000822 00°052'62 %0700 00'000's 00'000's Jopsadsy Buiping - Aiejes - £059
00'052'18 %816 00'S/E'vE 89°295°LE %0004 00'052'9 00°052°9 eowe Bupiing - Lejes - 1059
sasuadxy jjofed - 0059
00645 %00 000 000 %00 009 000 suonduasqns g $and - 05¥9
00°0FS %0°002 00'522 86O %3 LLL 00°St 0008 $a94 yueq - 00Z9
000002 %4 LT 00°002't 08'652 %00 000 000 Bunayuely pue Buisipeapy - 0109
asuadxg
00°288'809 %6 0FL 00'225'92z L1022'81E %4501 00'eLLLS 08 2¥6'eS Awodu| 1oL
000Z1 %689 0005 Fra %0708 000k 00'g SWOodU| JUSRYSIAU] - 008K
006/2'L 00'S52°L ucgensiuwpy uluoz - 0oLy
00°06L'c9 %P LLL 00'606'2Z 00'L1L5'sZ %0'¥L 006229 00'209'F s)wsdg Buiquinyd - oror
00°v00'gLL %B EFL 00'G95'st 0£'£69'29 %601 00°00F'8 09'190'6 SR [eIUeyIN - 0E0F
00298041 %P b L1 00°0.6'0F 00'8£9'sY %b 06 00°S0L'6 00'0LL'S SHwIR [e3MI9IT - 0Z0F
00'9ze' L %P 86 009622 00'062'2 %S'Z5 00425 00’542 sjuued [e1veds - GLOF
Q0°SZL0LE %8051 00282 9Ll 00'Z2e'sLL %OZLL 00'80€'92 00'LLY'82 swidg Buipng - 01ov
SWoIU|
19Bpng |enuuy 1ebpng y0 %, 196png QLA +Z Aoy - uer 1ehpng jo % 1ebpng 12 fel
1zoz feln siseq NIy
SDUBWLIOLIBSH umm_u_..m $S07 ¥ }1j0oid 1210190

Aloyiny Buip|ing ealy ocozeweley WY £1:0)



10:15 AM Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

06/10/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of May 31, 2021
May 31, 21
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1001 - Cash on Hand (Register) 300.00
1022 - Savings / Consumers CU 25.00
1050 - Checking / SMBT 188,805.32
Total Checking/Savings 189,130.32
Accounts Receivable
1200 - Accounts Receivable ) 1,425.00
Total Accounts Receivable 1,425.00
Other Current Assets
1250 - Accounts Receivables / ADJ 331.00
1400 - Prepaid Items 5,020.73
Total Other Current Assets 5,351.73
Total Current Assets 195,907.05
Other Assets
1600 - Accumulated Depreciation -46,437 .48
1900 + Capital Assets 231,006.20
Total Other Assets 184,568.72
TOTAL ASSETS 380,475.77
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable 1,706.51
Total Accounts Payable 1,706.51
Credit Cards
2010 - CCU - Mastercard 15.89
Total Credit Cards 15.89
Other Current Liabilities
2070 - Notes Payable - SMBT 125,202.20
2100 - Accrued ltems 489.04
2300 - Accounts Payables / ADJ 2,506.70
Total Other Current Liabilities 128,197.94
Total Current Liabilities 129,920.34
Total Liabilities 129,920.34
Equity
3010 - Net Position 178,312.44
Net Income 72,242.99
Total Equity 250,555.43
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 380,475.77

Page 1




KABAL )

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

BUILDING REPORT

MAY 2021

Residential / Commercial Building Permits and Construction Values

mmonNwr

Total Number of Commercial & Agricultural Permits Issued — 6

Total Construction Value for Commercial & Agricultural Permits - $2,794,894
Total Number of New Residential Construction Permits Issued — 3

Total Construction Value for New Residential Permits — $1,180,649

Total Number of All Other Residential Permits Issued — 31

Total Construction Value for All Other Residential Permits — $460,254

Revenue / Permit Summary YTD

Total KABA Revenue in May 2021 - $52,359.50 vs. Total KABA Revenue in May
2020 - $42,490. This is an increase of 23.2%.

Total Number of Permits Issued in May 2021 - 188 vs. Total Number of Permits
issued in May 2020 — 190. This is a decrease of 1.1%.

Total KABA YTD Revenue in May 2021 - $309,903 vs. Total KABA YTD Revenue in
May 2020 - $136,113. This is an increase of 127.7%.

. Total Number of Permits Issued YTD 2021 — 958 vs. Total Number of Permits

Issued this time in 2020 — 611. This is an increase of 56.8%.

The May 2021 Revenue of $52,359.50 is 20.6% of the forecast for May YTD 2021
Revenue ($253,680).

The YTD 2021 Revenue of 309,903 is 50.9% of the forecast for the entire 2021
Projected Budget of $608,832.



KABA N

Kalamazoo Area Bullding Authority

2021 MONTHLY PERMITS BY JURISDICTION

MONTH OF MAY 2021
JURISDICTION PERMIT CATEGORY # PERMITS PERMIT REVENUE
COMSTOCK BUILDING 10| $ 16,353
COMSTOCK ELECTRICAL 18] $ 2,723
COMSTOCK MECHANICAL 171 % 2,509
COMSTOCK PLUMBING 10] % 1,539
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 414 220
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER -1$ -
TOTAL COMSTOCK 59 | ¢ 23,344
KALAMAZOO BUILDING 16 | $ 2,460
KALAMAZOO ELECTRICAL 10] $ 1,376
KALAMAZOO MECHANICAL 241 ¢ 3,334
KALAMAZOO PLUMBING 213 200
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 5]% 275
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER -1% -
TOTAL KALAMAZOO 57] ¢ 7,645
PARCHMENT BUILDING -1 3 z
PARCHMENT ELECTRICAL 1] ¢ 111
PARCHMENT MECHANICAL 2] $ 226
PARCHMENT PLUMBING 1] ¢ 265
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - JURISDICTION il s 55
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER -1% ;
TOTAL PARCHMENT j 5] ¢ 657
PINE GROVE BUILDING 6| % 2,138
PINE GROVE ELECTRICAL 71 % 1,158
PINE GROVE MECHANICAL 5] % 917
PINE GROVE PLUMBING 1| $ 208
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 1] $ 55
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER -1$ i
TOTAL PINE GROVE 20] $ 4,476
RICHLAND BUILDING 71 % 7,408
RICHLAND ELECTRICAL 16 % 3,118
RICHLAND MECHANICAL 9l % 1,665
RICHLAND PLUMBING 9] $ 2,205
RICHLAND SPECIAL - JURISDICTION -l % -
RICHLAND SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER -1 % -
TOTAL RICHLAND 41| $ 14,396
RICHLAND VILLAGE BUILDING 1] ¢ 1,212
RICHLAND VILLAGE ELECTRICAL 1] ¢ 115
RICHLAND VILLAGE MECHANICAL 3] 3 415
RICHLAND VILLAGE PLUMBING 1] s 100
RICHLAND VILLAGE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION -1 $ -
RICHLAND VILLAGE SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER -1 $ 2
TOTAL RICHLAND VILLAGE 6| $ 1,842
TOTAL 188| $ 52,359.50
MAY 2020 % PREV YEAR MONTH
$ 42,490 123.2%
PERMITS PERMITS
MAY 2020 % 2020 - YTD
190 999%




Milicirins Liva Butdoq Kathariy

2021 MONTHLY PERMITS BY JURISDICTION

JURISDICTION PERMIT CATEGORY # PERMITS | PERMIT REVENUE
COMSTOCK BUILDING 75 ¢ 64,692
COMSTOCK ELECTRICAL 72 $ 12,870
COMSTOCK MECHANICAL 68 $ 12,254
COMSTOCK PLUMBING 36 $ 6,886
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 15 $ 825
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 5 $ 275

TOTAL COMSTOCK : 271 $ 97,802
KALAMAZOO BUILDING 73 $ 12,598
KALAMAZOO ELECTRICAL 68 $ 10,688
KALAMAZOO MECHANICAL 112 $ 21,732
KALAMAZOO PLUMBING 44 $ 5,772
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 27 $ 1,540
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - HOMEQWNER 7 $ 385

TOTAL KALAMAZOO 331 $ 52,715
PARCHMENT BUILDING 3 $ 520
PARCHMENT ELECTRICAL 11 $ 2,081
PARCHMENT MECHANICAL 9 $ 6,986
PARCHMENT PLUMBING 2 $ 674
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 2 $ 110
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 0 $ -
TOTAL PARCHMENT 27 $ 10,371
PINE GROVE BUILDING 26 $ 13,743
PINE GROVE ELECTRICAL 18 $ 2,481
PINE GROVE MECHANICAL 20 $ 3,443
PINE GROVE PLUMBING 9 $ 1,890
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 3 $ 165
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - HOMEQWNER 0 $ -
TOTAL PINE GROVE 76 $ 21,722
RICHLAND BUILDING 53 $ 81,508
RICHLAND ELECTRICAL 61 $ 15,601
RICHLAND MECHANICAL 72 $ 16,359
RICHLAND PLUMBING 42 $ 9,199
RICHLAND SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 1 § 55
RICHLAND SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 1 55
TOTAL RICHLAND 230 1 122,777
RICHLAND VILLAGE BUILDING 5 $ 2,102
RICHLAND VILLAGE ELECTRICAL 6 $ 809
RICHLAND VILLAGE MECHANICAL 8 $ 1,071
RICHLAND VILLAGE PLUMBING 4 $ 535
RICHLAND VILLAGE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 0 $ -
RICHLAND VILLAGE SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 0 $ x
TOTAL RICHLAND VILLAGE 23 $ 4,517
TOTAL KABA YTD 958 309,903
REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE
YTD - MAY 2020 % 2020 - YTD ks °lef§ég &
$ 136,113 227.7% 1.2%
PERMITS PERMITS
YTD - MAY 2020 % 2020 - YTD
611 156.8%
2021 MONTHLY CUMULATIVE TOTALS
# PERMITS REVENUE
185 | $ 91,435 JAN
157 | $ 41,412 FEB
201 | $ 73,173 MAR
227 | $ 51,524 APRIL
188 | $ 52,360 MAY
- $ - JUNE
- $ - JuLY
- $ - AUG
- $ - SEPT
- $ - ocT
- $ - NOV
- $ - DEC
958 | $ 309,903 2021



00°0L1% 00'00Z°F 1202/10/50 uopdnnsuo)) Ydop uoy  psTxa 03 wes] awey jsod ,G€ X ,§ 10N1SUOY) IS HI9Z NS0ST  T1Z-L0-12€d
00°81LYI8  00°95T°T8ST 1202/+1/50 sBeurjy] vononIsUOY ducksIauIo)  ruued A[UO [[9YS [RINIONLS PUR LONEPUNO] A YT TIIN 05601 60Z-20-126d
00°05¢$ 00°8¥1°0F 120T/21/50  OTT UORINRSUOD) Wwedi(] Suiping  $53008 PaJeay PIYoRISp ,9¢ X 87 1ONUSUOD VA SONINNAf £€6¢  £0Z-20-1Tdd
000L14 0070 1202/€0/50 aBeur]y UORONNSUOT) SUCKIVWIO) e (xoidde) 3's 00z1 Funsixe o) oIV HAV NNAH 8668 661-L0-124d
005124 00°€19°S1 1202/£0/50 IIP[Ng WOISN]) BOG 2 ISTEH] XEW  § X  © Y a5eIed paydeye .7z X 9] maN HAVHH I€06  €61-L0-124d
00°001$ 00°009°€ 1202/52/S0  OPUI\ SSPISH URSRIDIA SOAINOS IS WAISAS MOPULM §52150 MAU © [[EISU] (I STOHDIN €68 622-90-12¢d
006.$ 000 1202/0Z/50 OQ 'sSITINg ® ADNVN ‘SITING owap ogeren HAY QTAEANTSID 605 922-90-124d
007001¢ 000 1202/61/50 TV LA B SINNHJ ‘HAndd oFewrep [esruonis joor areday IS NATTIV 46 L1 +22-90-1zdd
00°0L1$ 00°0T'E 1202/12/90 swoshg ABPPIEIE WO UOSEIS MY ,§] X ,Z[ MU & Sup[ng] AATd $IINA[ 6211 €22-90-1zdd
0070014 0070 120¢/81/50  VEIVE ® ONOWAVY LANVIE  J19m0] ‘asnoy ur smoputm Sunsixs sorjday AA TTVANOAYV LTL T22-90-124d
00°S12$ 000 120Z/¢1/50 XX 'dNOYD SOLISIDOTIAVID  o0p Supeo] wl 103oedwos Sunsixa saoway @I ENIAVE 00¥C  0TZ-90-129d
00°SHS$ 00°S29°02 1202/€1/50 duedwo) svoneacun[ Iy d saquooeq A101s ¢ pue 7 Sunsixe sovjdey TIVANTA S 265 612-90-129d
00°S124 00 1LY 1T 1202/+1/50 Juowasoxdw] SwoH duoysde))  1sTxo 0) uomIppe sered KT X 71 100U5U0Y MA MTOLS 05¥€  L12-90-126d
00°0S1$ 000 1202/L0/S0 "H NINZV/[ ‘ST¥OL UOMI[OWdP SWOH YAV (THIANEMIO 80¢€  112-90-12€d
00°0L1$ 000 1202/L0/S0 swsdg juawaseq s194y 9154 oFeuresp prendisiem I00[qns f[eisuy IS HNIIAMS #267  012-90-12dd
00'0L1$ 00'SS9°T1 120T/11/50 SNIHD % 'V VIUHIS "TITHATOD & [ood & punote 32ap Sunsixs ay} saowsy HAV WNTE0S  902-90-1zdd
0070014 00°0 1202/ 40/50 Aorg sserD TN 2o ued od Justusseq UI mopUIM ss2189 [eIsuj @I ALVOINOILS LI €02-90-127dd
000014 00°00S°S 1202/50/50 uonannsuo)) Assdwa]  durer Jpeto[eatm paYorIap Mau e Suping HAV YHIOOD 8001 20Z-90-12¢d
0070014 000 1202/50/50 Fepog opewed  |d 1od SI[NPOW Ad PAIUNOW JOOI [ [[RISU] A VSSHANVYED 82748 102-90-174d
00°05$ 00'SLE'S 1202/90/50 ISMAL H Jddd NOLLNQ  pue A1078A198q0 ,L]X ] Sunsixe asowsy (A STOHDIN 816 861-90-1Zdd
00°001$ 00°8€E VI 120¢/€0/50  HLLAINOILNVY ‘NOSQUVION  -eSered pejeonqey-aid 07 x 81 & Surjjeisur AV WATZOIL  S81-90-124d
00°0L1$ 000 1202/07/50 U] BOMINASUOT) XEIR  paysTUY SullSIXa 0} UOLRIE/UOIBAOUSY NTAVE I ¢be9  SZZ-€0-124d
00'0L1$ 00°088°Z 1202/L1/S0 S 7R 0OZEWEEH] JO UEWAPULY I sueld 1ad yoep payorne 91X .71 MIN NI NHSOVIZZe8  912-€0-126d
00°0L1% 00°000°T1 1202/01/50 V™ A HOITTHSV “THZANAA 10553008 poydetep sureyy 1sod 04X 07 MaN QI TINO $9€8  S12-€0-174d
00'0L1$ Q0'ELYL 1202/01/50 puswaA0rdw] JWOH 3AEW  wal pue LIpume] pue 1ieq Jey € Suaowsy HAV HTVA 1668 80T-€0-124d
0026914 00'268°967 1202/20/50 UORDUNSUOT) 7 SIWOH SHeM\ 7 “YBq [IY € P2q ¢ J'S TOTE AI0IS [ MaN AAV 49 7 6£26  ¥02-€0-124d
00'161°C$ 00'SHS P8E 1202/90/50 STopIng USpMOUS  p ATIurey 2[Fus 'S §994 A101S S[BUIS MBN NTHVNITHW 22#9  061-€0-124d
00°S+8°28 00°Z1Z'66¥ 1202/L1/50 PULGAY  [SUls yeg ¢ PAq € §'S 0ZTS AI0IS T MAN AD HIOHS N 65€9  vL1-€0-12dd
P Munoury onfEA panss] are( swrepN] yueorddy wondmosag oM SSAUPPY  # MU _
1202/10/90 PR11SST ST J Mﬂﬁﬁﬂ—\—m %EHGOS



Supng = SdATIRUIII WIS

anNy

[12/1€/60 - 12/10/S0} <UOL SNOARIJ> W Panss[ec]iuIag

sprooay v ‘wonendog

00°L6L'SEY S e A UOTIOMIISUOY) [eI0 L,
00'1.G6Z$ P3N e, Ot SSHUIR JO Joquuini

00°0S1$ 00°0 1202/82/50  VHJIALS ® THVHODN ONIZINH M 9[3uls JunsIXa JO [RAOWIAI PUE ysI[owa(] I FOAN 09€1T  $€T-02-129d
00'8¢¢$ 000Z€'6S 1202/L1/50 un veArd  uBWI Pasn yIeq $'1 Peq € FS 0TI RIS (M ANITASVE 1626 122-02-12dd
00'012°18 009SZ°TIT 1202/11/50 UORONLSTO)) 2p SOWOH sNTA Q¢ YIIM SUWIOY pRI3 U0 QR[S J/S $TLT MIN LS (NTZ 988¢  #12-02-12dd
00°001% 00'0 1202/¥1/50 IP[OF FWOH JIMOJ LB R[0S I[TPOW Ad PAIUNOW JOOI 9T PPV HAY (TUET 9461€  €12-02-124d
00°0L1% 00°000°81 1202/£0/50 O NOSVINOSNIGOY  :FLONsueld 10d ureq sfod ,0p X 0 MoN HAV H181 09857  002-0¢-12dd
00°0.1% 00°096°C1 1202/90/<0 LLODS NOISQAOL  NILOOJ 'HLONeq ajod ,9¢ X b7 MaN HAAY CANT 88197 161-0Z-124d
00T1T'18  00°3£9°CIT 1202/€1/50 UOmDMISUOT gAY IS Y'S [ /] 6 BULISIXS JO INO p{ing JoUdu] IS ONTE N 0SP8  9T1-61-124dd
00°s12$ 000 1202/82/%0 Surping sumdA[o  oN “sue|d Jad UOPPAOUAI JOLIAXA JOLIIU] Y ATINITYAS S 6720 6£2-L01THd
00°041% 00°009°€ 120Z/L2/$0 vononnsuo e N sued 1ed ypap 07 X 71 PayoENE moN IS AANIMNOD L0y L£2-20°124d
00°0L1% 000 1202/8z/50 TR YEHIOISNIHD OZZVITIN 0 ‘yieq [[1y SUO SPN[OUT 0] JUIIISEq YSIUL] IS ATIAANYED 601 9€2-20-124d
00°001% 000 1202/92/%0 aseug onyD  dwey, 08 X ,0€ B JO UOHODID 3y} 10 UL M TIND 0085 €€T-L0-124d
00°6LY 000 1202/12/50 A VIDUVIN IO oe1ed jo owap IS YHATI 6201 8TT-L0-1T4d



00°S01$ 1202/50/50

speifidn a31a135 JINV 001

PERAE HPL7H IS HLSE N 906y L81-L01THd
00°0€18 120T/¥0/50 smary AIfY 07089S9S0 I HTBUIPIING M3V 10§ 20IATS JNV 00V XA\SId HLVISHIINI G467 €81-L0-1271d
00°501$ 1202/%0/50 omoapyg 1adsy Justuase[dal a01A10g AV H T 0SSS  $81-20-1270d
00°SHIE 1202/€0/50 ATT oD udig Ty 1PPI0q (I [[BISUL ‘SIon [ouueys 7 ‘s030] [[og 7 ooe[day MITIND SS09  £81-20-128d
00'9L1% 1202/€0/50 om9ly uosHIE( [3pOWSL UBYIY 1S MOONT AT 4621 €41-20-127d
009514 1202/€0/50 SPITAIIG TEDTFIIDF] EWOT A uoHIppVv IS NIVIN A 1698 Z91-.0-1ZAd
00°'S0TY 120Z/82/50 DAY WOSIIBE] "'/ aperddn 201AT0g M AOVED €156 £€2-90-125d
00'Z207¢ 1202/+2/50 VOISSHI ® SYION0A ‘NASINVd UONIPpE 381015 AV ONIANIA TLey €22-907124d
00°'9¢1$ 120Z/12/50 07y SLyDal 398qay,  SuNsIXe o] lamod Amlodwe) 1ag oy soye [aued pases|) 1S NIV A L10Sh  122-90-129d
00951 1202/v2/S0 omoapg ) SINPUOD PUB SIQED [[E PUE [OIIMS I9JSURI] JO UOLE][BISU] T ANIAVY #2726 €12-90-128d
000Z1% 1202/81/50 omparg yddwe| S1NDID ppy ‘opeiddn oo1Alag 1S SOVIVL #6627 G0Z-90-1248d
000514 1202/81/50 amary TySduwe| SINOIID PPy opeifdn a01al0g 1S ATTINAD S 661 802-90-125d
00°601% 1202/L1/60 T T3 M V00Z o1 apeiddn soiaiag M STOHDIN 1262 902-90-125d
00'901% 1202/L1/S0 Sumoor) 2 Junealy 103 usuraserdal vy 1S NOLONITIV NSIF  102-90-1251d
00'ST1$ 1202/01/50 ou] sudhg poying U0 998 2oedas pue Surpying uo uSis [[em Sumsixa sov[day R TDINTES 9861 681-90-17Hd
00'101$ 120Z/$0/S0 IP[0g OROWIE] Aelre 1e[0g MO VSSHANVEO 82.C  981-90-12dd
00011 1202/LT/50 TOMO] 79 UMET BWSTINIG [[BISUT JOJBIaUSL) HAV (D T £69C  1$7-€0-128d
00°LZ18 1202/92/50 OTT W03 s24 Aeare rei0g N'TVO HNOILS 9626 822-60-128d
00'2z18 102 /92/50 OTTIMAH 9K Avire 10§ [ SONISSOND HIMIVHA €94 L2T-60-TTHd
00'SOTE 1202/9¢/50 T Awedwony saorazag of 191£F69501 #ygapesddn a01A10g HAV G588 922-S0-12Hd
00011 1202/+2/50 weBRIA 3O Smoary Uy [{EISUI J0JRISUID) 1S IS1E N 0309 $T2-€0-12Hd
c0Ze1$ 1202/12/50 LTI IDMUBIPULAN 0.9 Fup[nq mau 01 Jepas) Areunid punoISispun man 1S HISZ N 00LS  Z2Z-€0-1zdd
noeeet 1202/¥2/50 snoatr rapydndure WO MIN TT8E89  6IZ-¢0-1ZHd
o0 ccet 1202/v2/<0 omoary rydndurey JWOY MIN AT ZI89  b1Z-S0-12%d
00'0T1 1202/ L1/S0 SUJ $0TATIG TEITIIDATY UeBiopy [[B1Sul JOTeIauan) AMH 68 W 0SL9  S0Z-C0-1ZHd
005814 1202/€1/50 ompaly e1ydndure [SPOWaI USYMIY TAV TIVA 1568 €07-€0-121d
00011$ 120Z/21/50 IIMOJ 29 UMET BUISTI2IG [BISUT IOJRISURD) AV (OOMATIONT 018 007-S0-12Hd
00'92T4 1202/11/50 Yo, vose| wreq sjod Io7 sLws[g AMH SFINS901 661-50-124d
009z¢$ 1202/L0/50 $I010¥I1B07) IIII[F PIIEPIOSUOT) WOy MON 1§ TNVALINNLS M 2228 $61-50-12Hd
0088z 1202/90/50 omoarg radsg  L91-€0-1TA # NULIRY Jopun uondadsul 90IAIRSIWOY MAN AD THOHS NZ/49  161-€0-128d
00°011% 1202/ 90/50 ampary Iadsy Aquo so1a1es duwta ], AD MOHS N 65¢9  061-$0-178d
0097%% 1202/£0/50 $I0IDETVOD) DI PAEPIOSTOT QWO MIN 1S INVATINOLS A 6718 781-C0-17d

[ LRIV RET i |
PA[Ig 3unouny - | PINSST Aeq - JweN Jueoqddy wonduoss(q oA ssappy g mumag |

1202/L0/90

panssy S 3pes ], AIuoy



00'sz1$
001014
00'651$
00°0¢1$
00'SZ1$
00014
00'031%
00'9Z$
00°¢9c$
00°0¢1$
00°0L1$
00°551$
00's¥z$

00ZL1E
00°6¢¢d
000114
009¢14
00°LT1$
00 L1
00 1¢T$
00's1T$
00111
00'191$
OOF0LS
0001ES
00soL$
00'SSTE
00FELE

00'S6$
000LLY
00011
00°S0TE
009518
00°19¢$

00°109°8$

120Z/€0/50 2 Sunesy] 211y [og
1202/€0/50 07) POOA, UB(]
1202/¢0/50 IV 79 Buneat] srecy oug
1202/ L0/50 SIZYIOIE pPoos
1202/82/50 Zuroory » Sunvary ploosspaip
1202/82/50 WESTOTAL 10) 2B DUV
1202/02/50 IV AHL [EUOTSUWICT
1202/L1/50 Furoory 29 Sumesf] 201N
1202/L1/50 Zuroory 7g Sunes] 300geTN
1202/21/50 190 29 BaE] BLISUIIG
120Z/01/50 T soedsang s peyoeg
1Z02/01/%0 woneIduyoy sefoy
120Z/90/50 [EaTUEY2] V 29
PR TE10L
120Z/82/50 omoarg 0,381
120Z/0Z/50 $1012€11B07) JMIDIT PIITPIOSUOT)
1202/%2/50 STHIF] UEWIAEL]
1Z02/61/50 AT % (I NAAVHS THONLLION
1Z02/01/50 wosdwoy | wenm
120T/+1/S0 TE[OS SWOL] I9MO]
1202/90/50 LILODS NOLSQAOY
120T/€1/S0 SEIANH Y22 L TH
120Z/81/50 07 poos UECT
1202/82/50 129 YHHIOISTIHD OZZVITIN
1202/L2/50 SLO3[] FSNOYYSLL,
1202/0Z/50 -ou] “omary Lasjoom
1202/%2/<0 NOSYIANY HAHLS
120Z/12/50 SISYIOIE PIENE
1202/L1/S0 o7 poos, TecT
1202/¥1/50 umoig v sogdny
1202/01/50 JOMO] 79 UMET BWSTI0IG
120Z/01/50 JNOJ 7P UME] BWSTINIG
1202/L0/50 99T UTUE, 2]
120Z/L0/50 39 AUET Anunon)
1202/50/50 07y FLIIT ISR

juswadepdar aorwing
Juswaoe[dal 13189y I31e AN
JuauIdR[dal Y 2p 90rUm,]
I01RI2USE 01 2UI[ SBD)
1awaoe[dar Dy

[[BISUI JOJRISURD)
USIULY/[SPOTIal JUdWaseq
awoY MIN

2WOY MIN

[[eIsUl I0]BI2UaL)

[resur avefdert g
stuswaoedar Dy

IWOY MIN

WO PAITIOBINUBIU MAN

TISTP1LS0] #AHSWOY MaN

PUnoIZISpuUN O} PESIsA0 UIOI] [ed0do SuSuey)
dure go1 “e3o0s 1913w wieq s[od 01 doIp 201AI9S MON
uxeq sjod 105 oyosrg

Aele 18]0g

wreq arod

SN DY 29 90BUIN] ‘oSueyd 201AI0g
P1661ELSOT #geperadn 2o1A1s JINV 00T

YsTUTj Justuaseq

1epno Swireys 1es SurreIsu]

HonIppy

spraddn ao1a12s JINV 007

[opouIal yieyg

APISING “$3[o21da0au [DAD) [ ‘opriSdn 2014198 JINY 00T
L0-07dd) uonoadsul Z/71/S WOy SUCIIE[OIA 0] SUOII0LI0D)

[[e1sul JojRIBURD
[[EISUT JOIBISUDL)
[pued 0] aIIM IDIAIIS MO [[BISU]

uonppy
SI1] I3 WO 2ITMT PUE IITAI0S duwa],

HAV NOLSHM 826F 68290 T2Wd

AT HATSANNOAS 60T 8£2-90-1ZIWd

LS NNOHTVD 01EL ££2°90- 12N

T JHAQTD HA €228 022790 1ZINd

HAV A 0609 £62-20-12Nd

1S IS1e N 0809 087-¢0-1ZINd

NTAVI T ¢¥e9  0LZ°L0TZNd

HHBE89  +#9C-€0-TZINd

JATIEY £92-¢0 1IN

HAV JQOOMTHONH SG18  L5T¢0- 12N

MO VI TIND A 9586 26220 1WA

MASTIIH TIND 2201 8¥C-€0-TZINd

LS INVAHIMILLS 24 2228 S0 T2Nd
LG ERY

¢G ISITUIdJ JO JdqUInp]

1S T/1 LT ¥85CT

NT TTVAINIA 8EbEE

W # AMH 0F 818

JAV HI8 91642

HAV HILS 77827

HAV (NIST 9.81€

HAV ANT 88192

HAV 2 H €456
SVIWOHL H L1€

IS AHIAANVYID 601
WD MITED TLILSVD $TI01
TAV NYOIHOIN A 0016
LD INTEVIA 195

LS H19T S S€0¢

A VOV 8619

IS ONINNEH ¥8

IS AO[ NWNLOV 122¥
NT ATFIAVA 6556

TAV O ° 9b58

HAV ITHOTTIAL 9419
AA HOOUD AOTTIIN 01£9

vee-0¢-12dd
0Z22-0Z-124d
91202 1¢dd
S1c¢-0T-1¢Hd
861-0Z-1¢dd
S61-02°1THd
081-02-1¢dd
20T-61-12dd
112-81-12dd
0¢e-L0-1¢dd
6T L0-1THd
812-L0-12dd
L1Z-L0-1¢dd
C1T-L0TTdd
LO0T-L0-1¢Hd
¥OT-LO-1Cdd
L61-L0-1¢Hd
961-L0-124d
Po1-L0-TCHd
¢61°L0712dd
881-L0-1THd



00ST1E
006Z1$
00°50Z$
00'65Z$
00'SZ1$
000018
00'sT1
00scid
oosiig
00°sZ1$
00°S5T$
006514
000¢1$
000¢1$
00°101$
00'6Z1%
059874
00°9¢T4
00'S61%
00ss1y
00'00T$
00°¢Z1$
00'5914
006514
00'SZ1$
00'sz1$
00'sT1$
00'5T1%
00°ST1$
00°551%
00°'521%
005714
001014
00°'101%
00'521%
00'6Z1$
00°GH14
001418

120Z/92/50
120Z/82/S0
120Z/92/50
120Z/92/50
120Z/$2/S0
1202/¢€2/S0
120z /¥2/S0
1202/12/50
1202/02/S0
120Z/81/50
120Z/11/50
1202/01/60
120Z/01/50
1202/01/50
120T/01/50
1202/01/50
120Z/90/50
120T/€0/50
120Z/82/S0
120Z/L2/50
1202/ LZ2/50
1202/52/50
1202/v2 /S0
1202/12/50
1202/v2/50
120z/82/50
120Z/82/50
120e/L1/50
120Z/L1/S0
1T0T/L1/50
1202/02/50
120Z/%1/50
120T/+1/50
120T/¥1/50
1202/L1/S0
126G2/01/50
1202/L1/50
1202/90/50

v 73 Sunvey] sy g

ny 2 SunesH 211y (3
OTIwae(Qg

wy 7 Juneay 9V g

mwy xp Funeay s1rv g

DT @91a335 Fugoon) zp Funeal] A1y
suj dwwonipuo)) ary 2 Sunesf] g
Sunoory % Sunesy] plooasparp
Sunearoxy sureruo,] sddun

DV 3 3unes]{ adgjiuog
JTOJWOT) [BUOSLIS

1y 7g Sunesy] 531y [og

IO 29 UME] BUISUING
IIMOJ 29 UME | BUISTIAG

07y poos, ue(]

[ESTURYID 13827

[ESTUEYISA] YHOWTY

SIDIATOG 01

Sunoony p Sunesyy mouade|
12138, Ureluag

Auedwon) 23 smog m

07) poosy UE(]

Y 29 dumeal 21Ty [2g
[EARUEURI A1) e
[THISPUEA 3qn]

[IFpUeA o]

[HFPPUBA 23]

Iy %% Sunesy ANy Pd

my x¢ umeal] ary g

00 pooy vE(

Suroor) 29 Fupes1] 190qeTN

Iy 29 Sunesy] amy [og

07} POOA, UECT

[EITUBYIIA] 1FOFWICT) Tedoy]
3ufo0)) % FumesH (DS

1y 3 Sumesyq aIry [ag

B W HNVL® TSRV “TIEAOd
Suroon) % Junesyy woqeIN

Jmwasedal v

‘(sFuusdo umyar 7 79 A[ddns ) JyIomjonp (YSIUT] WUSLOSEY
PIYs 1e8weyoxs jeay [ pue sprys duind yueradysl 7 [reisu]
SISIJIpIWNY 7 PUe ‘s, 0y ¢ “seorwuny g aoejday
wawaeda Dy

ueJ ISNRYXD yIeq soe[day

[eIsul yiun doyooy

yuauaoe[dal IaLIprumny 2y aosewnyg

A4 SHMS ,§ Y ddid o smonp .9 30 47 09 [reIsu]
ypwaoe[daz Dy

juswzoeidal Dy 2 avewIng

jusurasedal Yy @ sdvumy

[[EISUT I0JBIUD)

[[B1SUT I0IBIUIL)

Juswaserdar 1o1esY 1B M

dund jesy uids g ‘uonppy

Y10 192321 UT M[BM [[RISUI/ID[00 UL H[EM NIOMIY
S[[LS 19]SUel) T pUe UeJ Jsneqxs | ppy

Iesy [ood

npweseider Ny 2 aoeWwIng

(z0g pue 107 sidy) syuewasejdar Hy

I[easut v

ISIpIwny pue )y ‘eoeming asejday

nuusJduplmg Aranoe 10y Juswadse(das yum doygooy
upwade[dar soeuIn,g

uswade(dar v

uaweae(dar Oy

Jusweseda1 Dy

freisul 3y

uswaderdaz Hy 2 soewing

wewderdas acenin,g

[[BIsUl DY

jusurzoe]dar 1etesy JoYem

Jusweoe[dal 15191 JoYe A\

uaumde[dar Dy

juswaseydas Dy

WOOIYJeq M2U Ul UB]

191891 Iojem PUR ‘ISmpruuny Oy ‘eoewny soe(day

OVINAVH 611

IS ATIAANVEO 601
M TN $909

IO HOATY NENOUL 676€
WUID MO HSUVIN 0288
IS HI9Z S $€0¢
ISHINZ S SLLT

HAV HLVTH $08S

@I TTINDIAS S $652

JAV AOOMALSTID £759
IS AHISVD 1467

LS (UVEIDId 65

LS AO[ NIWALAY 172k

NTATITAVA 6556

HAY AV 8269

A LSHIOANNINS 0F6E

Td TIND 9209

HAV IWTH 868
NVT2IHTYD SSHULAD 8LLY
A HLTAISNAS +€12

SpIg HAV HAOUYTOD 2061
HNVT ANIHIAVULS 1062
LD TTIWN 9 TLSTHL ZeLv

T STTOHDIN §10%

HAVIO M IILL
HAV HLHT ¢vL

IO JAODHNIA 80T

LS TVIEVIVHD ¥2le

HAV HOTHNLSHM N L09¢
HNVIIIHLVAH 2102

HAV SVIDNOA 8428

T AVHLSIWIO L0¢T

M VA dTO 8Tes

Y0¢ NIV A Plet

LS NOLONITIV N S1¥
JAV LAQUDMOAVHN 115¢
LS HLOOWLEVA N OFS
LdNOD TIIN HTLSIHL SLLiy

CRTBT-1INd
68T LO~TTINd
88C7-L0-1TINd
L8T-LOTTINA
¥RT-LO- TN
CBT-LO1ZNd
8LC-L0"1ZINd
SLT-LO"TZINd
148 L0-TZINA
897-L0-1ZINd
99T-L0°1TINd
§SZ-L0"TENd
1S2-L0-12Nd
0SZ-L0-1ZNd
GYT-LO-1ZNd
9PT-LO- 1T
¥rZ-L0-1ZNd
SeT-LO0-TENd
16Z-90"1ZNd
062-90-12TNd
987-90-1TNd
£8C90-TZINd
182-90-TZNd
SLT-90- 1T
YL 90" TCNd
¢LE90-TENd
LT 9012
LIT-90-TCINd
997-90-1ZNd
S9C-90-TZNd
T9C-90-1T¢Nd
192-90-12Nd
09¢-90-TTd
65290 T2Nd
8GZ-90-12Nd
YSZ90- 1N
I¥2-90-1TNd
0¥Z-90-12INd



008024
00°001$
0069Z%
00'8L1%
00°6S18
00'58Z8
0000T$
00¢o1$
00001$
00'511$
00061$
00°¢514
00001%
000014
00'001%
000014
00'8628
00'¢1ES
00°SST$
0ceees
00°¢6T4
00°6.2%
0009T$
00'8LT$

00S61E
00’1528
0O'ST1S
006528
GO101$
LILTARY
00'sT1$
005914
001014

05°G90°6$

120Z/11/50 Surqumyg o8enog
1202/81/%0 ou] s1eemBuy yue [, ondeg wmapo
120T/€1/50 Buquin{ soye] 18910
1202/L2/50 T Swmqumpg xody
1202/92/¢0 Fuiqumy] opurpgy
1202/02/50 au[ ‘sadiazeg Fwmquun(g snwsy
1202/82/S0 SUORT[OS PEY O
1202/21/50 Fuiquun(g s,ounqy
1202/21/50 ondag 2 Jomag spreyRny
120Z/.0/50 Fwqumyg s3sox
120Z/90/50 [EIUBYDIPY] JOOUWHY
120Z/€0/50 $201A395 01
1Z02/90/50 SuoUN[OS Peg OO
1202/L1/50 SUOHN|OS WEY OO
1202/L1/S0 SUOTN[Og EY OO
120Z/92/50 30SSJOL] PITATIG
1202/12/50 Fuqumig sag
1202/12/50 Buquing oopp
1202/21/50 saMATeg aunpadr ]
1202/£1/50 Fuqung opuEpQ
1202/ .0/50 Fmqumnyg 98e110g
1202/ L0/50 Suiqumyq 2177
1202/29/50 saowrag Surqumg roradng
1202/L1/50 Buiqusnyg s8e1r0g
‘PRI T30
1202/+2/S0 a1y 29 Jungeap] a8varog
120Z/61/<0 TESTURYIO V 29
1202/01/50 DT sy 41T sunqdop]
120Z/11/50 suy Sutuonipuony my 2@ Sunesyy J[
120Z/€0/50 1y 29 Suneer] 2Ty [og
1202/12/50 v 2 Sunesy] sy Pg
1202/01/50 JUT prEqqnEE A\ OR(]
1202/50/50 ary 29 Sunear ey Py
120Z/82/50 07) POOA) UE(T

JWOY MaN

UOTIIUUOD JIMIG

T 9seyd 9SNOYITe A\

dnyooy AIpume] [pIs UONIPPE WOOIIEq I9ISEUL (UOLIPPY
[epowal yieg

2WOY MIN

‘BUNISIXD JOA0 PUNOLINS [[BA PUR J2UI] qN OI[AIDE [[BISU]
sdered w1 woompeq 2aniny 103 Furqunid ut Suqqnig
UOTI0AUUOD oM

¥ Amuea 2110 ‘qni/tamons mou Sunoerdar - jopoway
SureIp 100YJ/s3anxXy woodpeq 20ejdarspomnay
Surdid Areyrues jo og ~xoxdde pue uresp youan [esug
UOISIZAUOD JOMOUS 0] qh T

MIXI] 2AJeA 20[da1 19Ul] [[eMm PUB NI SI[AIDE L1asU]
wsuRde[da qny,

JusTuaoe[dal 19189 JaTe A

TUSUIISBQ POUSTUL] YILM STUOY MIN

Juawoseq PAYSIU YILM TWOY MIN

[APOWI USYINY

e [[vF |MIs 38eIeT payorIa(]

SUIOY MIN

SWOY MIN

AWOY MAN

SUIOY MAN

dmes swoy panjoenueWw MmN

QWO MIN]

s Aque] 477

JUIOY MAIN

Juewaoeidau sajea] 191 M

wa3sAs ypds rumur jeay

Juswreor[dal aseuIn,g

1maweor[das JelIpTUInY puR )V *S0eUIn,|
Jusurade[dal Ia1eal] Joye py

LS (INZZ 988¢

HAV 3 T €266
ADINNA 101

IS NIVI T 1698

IS H19Z S S€0¢

AN LLVONAM 8€7¢
HAV LI TIIA S918
AA $ONINNEL €£6¢€
TAY VOOLVIVS 881%
AAY VNVLINYT 098
@ TIND S€09

FAV WAL 8568

IS QOOMTIAA bEzs
NT TIIMANL S22

@ HIHIVZYN L181
WA AV TIND M 1SH01
AD TIOHS N 65€9

NT HVNIQHIN 2249
HAV TTVA 15¢8

AMH €9 59201

HAV 49 J 6576

AAY 9 H $599

LIS INVATLIMNLS /4 +$28
NT HVNIQIW 1++9

Zei-0g-12dd
621-61-12dd
LZ21-81-12dd
9e1-L0-12dd
Sel-L0-18dd
el L0712dd
1€1-L0-12dd
921-L0-1edd
¥C1-L0-18dd
B11-L0-12dd
ALT-L0-12dd
P11-L0-12dd
Zl1-L0712dd
8Z1-90-12dd
911-90-12dd
rel-¢0-12dd
€e1-¢0-Tedd
0€1-¢0-Tedd
et 1edd
£C1-¢0-TTdd
1Z21-¢0-12dd
0C1-¢0-12dd
611-¢0-Tzdd
Sli-c0-12dd

surqumig

09 ISITIdJ JO FaquUInN

LS T/1 LT ¥85TT
NTHIVAHANII 8¢vE€
HAVY HI8 916¥C

LS (ONZT 988¢

T AINTI NTAHLIAON L6187

ayTIND 1898

HAV JOOMXHDIY CL¥6
HAV HA H €486
NOILTINVH L15

6LT 0T TaNd
692-02-1¢INd
£SC 02 TCNd
S¥C-02- 1IN
9e 0T TZINd
LLT 6T TZINd
LYT-61-1ZINd
[AZA AL
26Z2-81-1ZNd



(12/1€/50 - 12/10/S0} <PUOW SNOLAGIY> UT PRNSS[AIE(] IWID]

aNv
Suiqumg = adA1yurs g rwisg
VO oy = addy s g ims g

MO Eomd[g = 2dATamuaganung
sprozoy [V :uocnendog

0S°¢81°CCE PIME IBI0T, LET SHUWIR JO Joquuni

00°L1S¥$  :PSIITG Te10], 14 -SHUIR ] JO Ioquun N



paaoaddesiq onoodsuy asueUSUIE ALedoig 120T/01/50 ssuonoadsug

W}oolstmoT) woay 1sanbor soususiurepy Arador] wonduosa(y HIop

005 120T/L0/S0 ITISIVINGY SIAVA O¥1-¢¥C61-L0 TAV MDOISNOD 1626 CGO-L0-12Sd
pasoddesicy opadsuy asueusurepy Aedold 120T/E0/50 :suopdadsug
ypo15WwoT) woiy 1sanbar ssurusjurepy Atadorg :monduasaq qaom
007653 120C/08/%0 d SHTAVHD ITIVIN 060-501-¢€1-£0 LS HISE N L0ZT 6¥0-L0-12Sd
paaociddesiq onpadsuy soueusuTely Auedoig 1207/81/50 ssuonoadsug
3da(q amy drysumo [, cozewe[esy] wosy 1senbar soveusiutepy Ausdosg  JUORdUISS( oM
00°sc% 120T/L1/S0 OTT AVOTI Z100ge81-90 IS NIVIN A T0Sh 960-90-1ZSd
posoddesiqq onoadsu] soususEy Altedold 1202/50/50 :suopsadsuy
oozewe[Ey] Woj 1senbar ssuruurep] Lisdorg wonduosaq spom
00553 120Z/50/50 NHX ‘NdTIT 065-90¢v2-90 IS TSIV 6082 +$50-90-12Sd
Apeay 10N onoadsuy svteuUIRIA Adedol] 1202/90/50 ssuondadsu]
QOZBWEEY] Wwoij 1sanbaz sourusiumey Aredorg wondudsaq som
00658 1202/70/50 ANV (UVHON ‘H.LVHH 092-01¢-60-90 (T STOHDIN 91.2 150-90-12Sd
pasosddesiq onoadsu] soueumely Auedoid [20T/L0/50 :suondadsuy
0OZBWEEY] woiy 1sonba1 soueunure Hiadorg monduosa( sppom
00°¢6$ [20T/0/50 0 NHAALS ‘AATHO0D 0St-S€1-11-90 M NOTIVINTD €162 0S0-90-12Sd
panoxddesi(y onadsu) soueusulely Aledold L10T/90/11 ssuonaadsuy
paaoaddesiq orpadsuy ssurusimely Altadold 120T/£0/50 ssuopoadsuy
UORE[OIA 2po7) Surpmeg wonduosa( oM
000114 L10¢/90/11 Q1R IVINO ‘OLVNON 0TL-SOF+T-90 AV JTIIANTTIO 805¢ LB0-90-L1Sd
[e10], 334 pRIaiuyg are(q puMs() Iaquunp] [3a0r1eJ ssappy qof # muad g
I J reroadg
1202/ L0/90 s1sanboy soueuaurey A1xadosg A[ruo



[ SIWIdJ [PI0] pueIn
00'SIL$ S99 [E10], puesn

l1z/1€/50
- 1Z/10/S0] <{puour SROTASIL >
Ul PA[NpRYOSemI ] 21k uonvadsur

NV

(394 A'IOH = smeIg s
ANV UL

[Broads = adApnuuag-iiunag
ANV 1sanbay

nOMRIPSLING = AI0Sa1B7) LIS
sproddy v :uonemdog

Ayeurwung 1rodoy

00°STLS :9dA 1 10 sad 3 rero,
A :9dL1, 30, samura g rer0 .
pasoxddesiqg onpadsuy soweumurely Alsedosd 170Z/+0/50 rsuondadsuy
22015) aul] w1y 189nbaz soueusiuepy Aadorg  wonduosa( WIom
00'6s$ [C0T/+0/50 d ATONYV NNVINEJ O1-110-1€0°61-08 W # AMH OF §5902 7S0-02-125d
pasoxddesiq onoadsuy soteuspuntely Auadory 120Z/91/€0 ssuopoadsu]
parorddy uonpadsur-ay “jurey Artadolg 120Z/01/50 rsuopsadsuy
JuswydIE WwoIy 1sonbax ssueumurepy Aadosg  ‘wonduosa( dpom
000114 120Z/9T/C0 W2 ATINVIS ZOVdvd 089-081-20-20 AT HTVAONATD GT1F GZ0-81-12S8d
paaoxddesiq onoadsuy aoueuuIely Auedold 120T/LT/S0 ssmonoadsuy
ypoIswor) woiy 1sonbox svuvusjurepy Asadosg  uoBdudsaq oM
00's5¢ 120Z/LT/50 VXOY % 3N NILSNTL 0207¢5¢-90°L0 A TIED 1808 090-L0-128d
paosddesiq onvadsul souruuIB[y Apedolg 120T/0T/50 ssuopsadsuy
Yoouswor) wosy 15anbaz soueunurepy Arsdorg  JBonduvsa(q yrox
00's5$ [20T/61/50

S TIVNOA TTHASIVIg 0Le-501-02-L0 IS WOV 1+T L80-L0-1ZSd



Presentation

by
Jordan Smith, CPA
Maner Costerisan




Maner Costerisan PC
a. n e r 2425 E. Grand River Ave.

Suite 1

Lansing, MI 48912-3291

OS erisan 1517237500
Certified Public Accountants F: 517 323 6346

Business & Technology Advisors WwWWw.Mmanercpa.com

April 30, 2021

To the Board of Directors
Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

We have audited the financial statements of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority (the Authority) for the
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. Professional standards require that we provide you with
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in
our letter to you dated April 2, 2021. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the
following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Kalamazoo Area Building Authority are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during 2020. We noted no transactions entered into by the Authority during the year for which there is a lack
of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those
expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was:

Management's estimate of the depreciation expense is based on the useful lives of the capital assets. We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates of the useful lives for capital
assets in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.



Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Material misstatements were not detected as a result of our auditing procedures. .

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant
to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose
during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated April 30, 2021,

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of
an accounting principle to the Authority’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Authority’s auditors, However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the management's discussion and analysis, which is required
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we cbtained during our audit of the basic financial statements, We did not audit the RSI and do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI,

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of Kalamazoo Area
Building Authority and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Very truly yours,

W aney Coratocirane Pc.




Kalamazoo Area Building Authority
Kalamazoo County, Mu:h:gan

,FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS |
Years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSS{ON AND ANALYSIS

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statements of net position
Statements of activities
Statements of cash flows

Notes to financial statements

12-16




Maner Costerisan PC
a n e r 2425 L. Grand River Ave.

Suite |

Lansing, M1 48912-3291

OS erlsan T: 517 323 7500
Certilied Public ounta I: 517 323 6346

Business & Techs uh wy Advisors www.manercpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Kalamazoo Area Building Authority
Kalamazoo, Michigan

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority (the
Authority) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, as identified in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context, We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

April 30,2021




_© 'MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS -~




The following discussion and analysis is intended as a narrative overview of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority’s (the
Authority) operations over the two recent fiscal years and its financial condition on December 31, 2020 and 2019. Please
read it in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

*  The Authority’s total net position increased by $23,698 in 2020 and increased by $42,306 in 2019,
» Total net position was reported in the amount of $178,312 (5154,614 at December 31, 2019), with unrestricted net
position of $123,442 (5111,599 at December 31, 2019).

Overview of the financial statements

The Statement of Net Position reports all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities, along with the difference between the
two, which is identified as the net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator
as to whether the Authority’s financial position is improving or deteriorating. However, other factors must also be
considered when evaluating the overall financial position.

The Statement of Activities shows how the Authority’s net position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net
position are reported when the underlying events giving rise to the changes cccur, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods {e.g., earned but unused vacation leave). This statement should help the reader to answer the
guestion: Is the Authority better or worse off as a result of this year’s activities?

The Statement of Cash Flows presents the Authority’s cash receipts and disbursements during the fiscal year, classified by
principal sources and uses.

Funds

The accounts of the Authority are organized within a single fund, its Operating Fund. This fund accounts for the expenses
involved in providing inspection services to customers within the member townships who are charged fees to recover the
costs of operation. This fund uses accrual accounting, which is the same method used by private-sector businesses.

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is necessary to understand the data
reported in the financial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY AS A WHOLE

Net position

Net position may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of the Authority’s financial position. in the Authority’s case, assets
exceeded liabilities at the end of fiscal year 2020 by $178,312 compared to $154,614 at the end of fiscal year 2019 and
$112,308 in 2018. The Authority’s net investment in capital assets, a component of the total net position, amounts to
$54,870 at the end of fiscal year 2020, compared to balances of $43,015 and $62,485 for 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
Authority uses these capital assets to provide essential services to its customers; consequently, these assets are not
available to be liquidated for future spending needs.

-

L5

L. _i




Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSS

Condensed financial information

Net position
2020 2019 2018
Current assets $ 135479 5 122922 § 58,103
Capital assets 184,569 183,015 62,485
Total assets 320,048 305,937 120,588
Long-term debt 129,699 140,000 -
Current and other liabilities 12,037 11,323 8,280
Total liabilities 141,736 151,323 8,280
Net assets:
Net investment in capital assets 54,870 43,015 62,485
Unrestricted 123,442 111,599 49,823
Total net position $ 178,312 $ 154614 $ 112,308

Changes in net position

The Authority’s total revenues of $590,118 in 2020 were $89,573 lower than total revenues in 2019 ($679,691}. The
Authority’s operating revenues come from its customers for building and trade inspections, and plan review fees. These
charges comprise 99 percent of the Authority’s revenues. Total 2020 expenses of $566,420 were $70,965 lower than the
total 2019 expenses ($637,385). Revenues decreased due to reduction in inspection activity, due to the pandemic lock
down. Expenses decreased primarily due to lower personnel costs and professional services due to decreased activity from
2019.

The Authority’s total revenues of $679,691 in 2019 were $232,203 higher than total revenues in 2018 {5447,488). The
Authority’s operating revenues come from its customers for building and trade inspections, and pian review fees. These
charges comprise 99 percent of the Authority’s revenues. Total 2019 expenses of $637,385 were $130,209 higher than the
total 2018 expenses ($507,176). Revenues increased due to increased inspection activity. Expenses increased primarily due
to higher personnel costs and professional services due to increased activity from 2018 in addition to a loss of $52,273 on
disposal of assets.




Kalomazoo Area Buildin orit

SUSSION /

Condensed financial information
Changes in net position

2020 2019 2018
Operating revenues $ 589956 S5 679,423 S 447,312
Nonoperating revenues - interest 162 268 176
Total revenues 590,118 679,691 447,488
Operating expenses 558,327 584,722 507,176
Nonoperating expenses:
Interest expense 8,093 390 -
Loss on disposal of assets - 52,273 -
Total expenses 566,420 637,385 507,176
Changes in net position S 23698 S 42306 $  (59,688)
Net position at end of year $ 178,312 S 154,614 S 112,308
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital assets
The Authority’'s investment in capital assets was as follows:
2020 2019 2018
Land $ 21,000 S 21,000 S -
Office equipment 4,741 607 3,186
Building 158,828 161,408 -
Leasehold improvements - - 59,299
Totals $ 184,569 5 183,015 $ 62,485

More detailed information about the Authority’s capital assets is presented in Note 3 of the notes to the financial

statements.

Debt

At the end of the fiscal year, the Authority had long-term debt outstanding in the amount of $129,699, which represents a
decrease of 510,301 Timely principal payments, in the amount of $10,301, were made which reduced long-term debt.

More detailed information about the Authority’s long-term obligations is presented in Note 5 of the notes to the basic

financial statements.,

L4




Kalomazoo Area Building Authority

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUISSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) .-«

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Authority continues to develop uniform processes and information to implement the combination of inspections
activities within its member townships and to actively recruit new municipal members.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Questions regarding any information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to:

" Kalamazoo Area Building Authority
2322 Nazareth Road
Kalamazoo, MI 49048




- - BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -




Kalamazoo Area Building Authority
o .‘.} E et

December 31, 2020 and 2019

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable

Prepaid items
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages
Other accrued liabilities
Compensated absences due within one year
Notes payable due within one year

Total current liahilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Note payable

Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

See notes to financiol statements

2020 2019
$ 126,504 $ 114,538
474 1,013
8,501 7,371
135,479 122,922
21,000 21,000
163,569 162,015
184,569 183,015
320,048 305,937
3,129 2,717
8,194 6,306
225 616
489 1,684
10,243 9,178
22,280 20,501
119,456 130,822
141,736 151,323
54,870 43,015
123,442 111,599
$ 178312 $ 154,614




Kalamazoo Area Bullding Authon'ty

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIE

Years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 )

OPERATING REVENUES
Permits:
Building
Electrical
Mechanical
Plumbing
Special
Ordinance enforcement
Zoning administration

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel costs
Employee benefits
Contracted inspections:
Electrical
Mechanical
Plumbing
Ordinance enforcement
Zoning administration
Professional services
Computer support and operations
QOperating supplies
Resource materials
Maintenance and utilities
Insurance
Telephones
Vehicle expense
Staff recruiting and training
Rent expense
Miscellaneous
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME
NONOPERATING REVENUES [EXPENSES)
Interest

Interest expense
Loss on disposal of assets

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION - BEGINNING

NET POSITION - ENDING

See notes to financial stotements

10

2020 2019
$ 283433 § 342,192
103,567 114,666
124,344 125,507
49,266 67,552
6,232 10,010
166 1,870
17,948 17,626
589,956 679,423
232,554 232,046
88,513 73,839
51,450 54,050
54,806 48,047
28,597 31,380
68 1,019
13,465 13,760
19,895 34,651
15,701 12,425
8,049 9,744
- 1,151
7,938 7,477
11,159 9,008
8,769 8,217
10,003 12,431
- 55
. 25,443
589 2,282
6,771 7,697
558,327 584,722
31,629 94,701
162 268
{8,003) {390)
- (52,273)
(7,931) {52,395}
23,698 42,306
154,614 112,308
$ 178312 § 154614




CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and members
Payments to vendors and suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from debt issuance

Acquisition of capital assets

Principal payments on long term debt

Interest paid on long term debt

Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

NET INCREASE IN CASH
CASH - BEGINNING
CASH - ENDING

Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages
Other accrued liabilities

Compensated asbsences

Net cash provided by operating activities
See notes to financial statements

11

2020 2019
$ 590,495 $ 680,461
(320,111) {342,445)
(231,861) (230,967)
38,523 107,049
- 140,000
(8,325) (180,500)
(10,301) -
{8,093) (390)
(26,719) (40,890)
162 268
11,966 66,427
114,538 48,111
$ 126504 $ 114,538
S 31,629 § 94,701
6,771 7,697
539 1,038
(1,130) 570
412 (157)
1,388 1,045
(391) 471
(1,195) 1,684
$ 38,523 $ 107,049




NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority (the Authority) conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America {hereinafter referred to as generally accepted accounting principles) as applicable
to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the more significant
accounting policies.

Reporting entity:

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the Authority {located in
Kalamazoo County); management has determined that there are no other entities for which the Authority is financially
accountable.

These financial statements include all the operations of the Authority, a municipal joint venture. The Authority is a separate
legal entity governed by an Authority Board established under Section 7 of the Urban Cooperation Act. The Authority was
originally created under the provisions of Public Act 7 of 1967 {Ex. Sess.), as amended, through an agreement entered into
by the Charter Townships of Comstock and Kalamazoo. The Authority regulates and controls building construction within
Comstock Township, Kalamazoo Township, City of Parchment, Pine Grove Township, Richland Township, and the Village of
Richland and has the power to administer and enforce the State Construction Code within the boundaries of each such unit.
The purpose of the Authority is to administer and enforce the Michigan State Construction Code within its member
municipalities.

Buasis of accounting:
The Authority uses the accrual basis of accounting to account for its operations. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash fiows.

Operating revenues and expenses:

The Authority distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services in connection with principal ongoing operations. Operating revenues represent
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Assets, liabilities, and equity:
Cash - Cash is considered to be demand deposits.

Receivables - All receivables are considered to be fully collectible and are due within one year.

Capital assets - Capital assets, which include property, equipment, and vehicles, are defined by the Authority as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Equipment 5-7years
Buildings 7- 30 years
Software 3years

12




NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Assets, Habilities, and equity (continued):
Net position - Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. The Authority currently reports
two categories of net position, as follows: (1) Net investment in capital assets consists of net capital assets reduced
by outstanding balances of any related debt obligations attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets; and (2) Unrestricted net position consists of all other net position that does not meet
the definition of the above component and is available for general use by the Authority.

Compensated absences - It is the Authority’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused paid
time off. A liability for unpaid paid time off has been recorded for the portion due to employees upon separation
from service with the Authority. Vested compensated absences are accrued when earned in the financial
statements.

Long-Term Obligations - Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are recognized as a liability when
incurred. The portion of those liabilities expected to be paid within the next year is a current liability with the
remaining amounts shown as noncurrent.

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those

estimates.

NOTE 2 - CASH

State statutes and the Authority’s investment policy authorize the Authority to make deposits in the accounts of federally
insured banks, credit unions, and savings and loan associations. The Authority’s deposits are in accordance with statutory
authority. As of December 31, 2020, and 2019, the Authority had deposits with carrying amounts of $126,204 and
5114,238, respectively, and $300 of imprest cash on hand.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a financial institution, the Authority will not be able to
recover its deposits. The Authority’s investment policy does not specifically address custodial credit risk for deposits. At
December 31, 2020 and 2019, none of the Authority’s bank balances of $130,841 and $119,187, respectively, were exposed
to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.

13




NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2020, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
balance Increases Decreases balonce
Capital assets not being depreciated - land $ 21,000 § - $ -5 21,000
Capital assets being depreciated:
Office equipment 19,995 4,905 - 24,900
Buildings 163,886 3,420 - 167,306
Software 17,800 - - 17,800
Subtotal 201,681 8,325 - 210,006
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Office equipment {19,388) (771) - (20,159)
Buildings (2,478) (6,000) - (8,478)
Software {17,800) - - {17,800}
Subtotal {39,666) (6,771} - (46,437}
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 162,015 1,554 - 163,569
Capital assets, net S 183,015 S 1,554 5% - S 184,569

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2019, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
balance Increases Decregses balance
Capital assets not being depreciated - land 5 - S 21,000 § - $ 21,000
Capital assets being depreciated:
Office equipment 19,995 - - 19,995
Buildings 70,648 159,500 {66,262) 163,886
Software 17,800 - - 17,800
Subtotal 108,443 159,500 [66,262]) 201,681
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Office equipment {16,809} {2,579) - {19,388)
Buildings {11,349) {5,118) 13,989 {2,478)
Software (17,800) - - {17,800}
Subtotal {45,958) (7,697) 13,989 {39,666)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 62,485 151,803 (52,273) 162,015
Capitai assets, net S 62485 $ 172803 S5  (52,273) § 183,015

14




Kalamazoo

NOTES

NOTE 4 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority Is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions, employee injuries
(workers’ compensation), and medical benefits provided to employees. The Authority has purchased commercial insurance
for each of these claims and is neither self-insured, nor participates in a shared-risk pool. During the past three years,
settlements did not exceed insurance coverage.

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM OBILIGATIONS

At December 31, 2020, long-term obligations represent the $140,000 2019 note payable, payable in menthly installments
ranging from $1,565 to $82,375, including interest at 6.00%; final payment is due January 2025.

Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2020, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Amounts due
balance Additions  Reductions balance within one year

Primary government:
Direct borrowing:

Note payable $ 140,000 $ - S  {10,301) § 129,699 § 10,243
Compensated absences 1,684 18,697 (19,892) 489 489
S 281684 $ 18,697 5  (40,494) § 259,887 S 20,975

Debt service requirements at December 31, 2020, are as follows:

Year ended Direct borrowing
December 31: Principal Interest
2021 S 10,243 § 6,975
2022 11,829 6,954
2023 12,569 6,214
2024 13,340 5,444
2025 81,718 657
Totals $ 129,699 § 26,244

NOTE 6 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The Authority provides pension benefits for alf of its full-time employees through a defined contribution plan. In a defined
contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan, plus investment earnings. Employees are
eligible to participate after 90 days of employment. The Authority contributes an amount equal to 6% and employees have the
option to contribute. The Authority's contributions for each employee {and interest allocated to the employee's account) are
fully vested upon entering the plan. The Authority and eligible employees made the required contributions of $14,193 and
$-0-, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2020. The Authority and eligible employees made the required
contributions of $13,818 and $-0-, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2019. The Authority is not a trustee of the
plan, nor is the Authority responsible for investment management of plan assets.

15

c— OO [




Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

NOTE 7 - UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases, was issued by the GASB in June 2017 and will be
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The objective of this Statement is to increase the usefulness of
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liahilities for leases that previously were
classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions
of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings
of the right to use the underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources,
thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. '

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-based Information Technology Arrangements, was issued by the GASB in May 2020 and
will be effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2022. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial
reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users {governments). This
Statement (1} defines a SBITA; (2} establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset - an intangible asset - and
a corresponding subscription liability; (3} provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments,
including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the
standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.

NOTE 8 - UNCERTAINTIES

The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the Authority's operational and financial performance will depend on certain
developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact on services, employees, and vendors all of which are
uncertain and cannot be predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact the financial condition and results
of operations is uncertain,

16




Construction Board of
Appeals Policy




Kalamazoo Area Building Authority Construction

Board of Appeals Guidelines

Construction Board of Appeals Hearings are to be held in accordance with 1976 PA 267 (Open Meetings

Act)

Prior to each hearing the Construction Board of Appeals (CBA) members are to select a member to Chair
that meeting. Once selected, the Chairperson shall open the meeting, declare the date and time and take
roll call. The Chairman shall additionally circulate among the designated CBA members any written
documents or exhibits provided by appellant or the building official relative to the appeal.

1.

Meeting Procedures

Following roll call the Chairperson shall announce the name of the appellant and the nature of the
appeal. The Chairperson shall further notify the appellant and Building Official or their
representatives the amount of time allotted to present the appeal.

The Chairperson shall then give the floor to the appeliant or its representative to give a more
detailed description of the nature of the appeal request and the relief sought.

The Board may ask questions of the appellant or its representative as necessary to clarify the
request of the appellant including the type of relief requested and any alternatives to same.

Once the board is satisfied with the description of the appeal request, the Board shall then give
the floor to the Code Official or its representative to explain his or her reasoning for the decision
appealed including his or her interpretation and determination of the relative Michigan Code
giving rise to the appeal request.

The Board may ask questions of the Code Official or its representative as necessary to clarify the
decision.

The Board may then open discussion and ask additional questions of the parties involved in order
to make a determination.

All discussions related to the appeal shall be held during the open hearing unless otherwise
allowed by the Open Meetings Act.




2. QGuidelines for decision

125.1515 Specific variance from code; requirements; breach of condition; permissible variance.

Sec. 15.

(1) After a public hearing a board of appeals may grant a specific variance to a substantive
requirement of the code if the literal application of the substantive requirement would result in an
exceptional, practical difficulty to the applicant, and if both of the following requirements are
satisfied:

(a) The performance of the particular item or part of the building or structure with respect to
which the variance is granted shall be adequate for its intended use and shall not substantially
deviate from performance required by the code of that particular item or part for the health,
safety and welfare of the people of this state.

(b) The specific condition justifying the variance shall be neither so general nor recurrent in
nature as to make an amendment of the code with respect to the condition reasonably practical or
desirable.

(2) A board of appeals may attach in writing any condition in connection with the granting of a
variance that in its judgment is necessary to protect the health, safety and welfare of the people
of this state. The breach of a condition shall automatically invalidate the variance and any
permit, license and certificate granted on the basis of it. In no case shall more than minimum
variance from the code be granted than is necessary to alleviate the exceptional, practical
difficulty.

R112.2 Limitations on Authority

An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that the true intent of this code or the rules
legally adopted thereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of this code do not
fully apply or an equally good or better form of construction is proposed. The board shall not
have authority to waive requirements of this code.

3. Opinion and Notice to Appellant

Once the board is satisfied that it has received sufficient information to make a determination,
the Chairperson or a CBA board member designated by the Chairperson shall within 30 days of
the hearing render a written opinion outlining its reasons for the decision and file same with the
KABA office. A copy of the decisions and statement of reasons for the decision shall be mailed
by first class mail to the appellant or its representative at the address appearing on the appeal.
The notice of decision shall also provide notice of the appellant’s rights related to the decision
including the right to appeal to the Michigan Building Department. KABA shall maintain copies
of any CBA decisions in accordance with its retention policy and Michigan Law.




